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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon.  I am Madeline Provenzano, Chair of the

          4  Committee on Housing and Buildings.  I want to thank

          5  all of you for coming today.

          6                 There is a little confusion because

          7  originally the meeting was at 250 in a very small

          8  room, and somehow the powers that be decided that

          9  they would move us over here so we could accommodate

         10  the folks that wanted to come.  And there are signs

         11  there, if any of you are here for the Sanitation

         12  Hearing, though, that's at 250 Broadway, on the 14th

         13  floor.  I don't see masses of people moving so.

         14                 We have four matters on for today.

         15  They are: Intro. No. 367, which is a local law to

         16  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         17  York, in relation to extending the Rent

         18  Stabilization Laws.

         19                 Resolution No. 690, a resolution

         20  determining that a public emergency requiring rent

         21  control in the City of New York continues to exist

         22  and will continue to exist after April 1st, 2003.

         23                 Resolution No. 691, it's a resolution

         24  calling up the New York State Legislature to repeal

         25  the Urstadt Law.
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          2                 Resolution No. 692, a resolution

          3  calling upon the New York State Senate to pass, and

          4  the Governor to approve Assembly Bill 2716- 1, in

          5  relation to extending state rent regulation and

          6  eviction protection laws and repealing high-rent

          7  vacancy decontrol.

          8                 The subject of rent regulation is of

          9  the utmost importance to many of the citizens of New

         10  York City, and I want to assure the public that I

         11  wholeheartedly expect that this Committee and the

         12  full Council will act to extend the protections

         13  afforded by rent control and rent stabilization.

         14                 In particular, the Committee

         15  recognizes the urgency required for passage of

         16  Intro. No. 367 and Res. No. 690, which will extend

         17  the protections of rent stabilization and of rent

         18  control respectively until April 1st, 2006.

         19                 Since this hearing is very important

         20  to all of us and might tend to stir up emotion in

         21  some of us, I would like to share my expectations

         22  with you for this hearing.  I know that I can expect

         23  everyone here today to respect the individual who is

         24  testifying, whether you agree with them or not.  I

         25  also know there will be no booing, no calling out,
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          2  and I know I can expect everyone to act with the

          3  utmost decorum.

          4                 Having said that, our first speaker

          5  is Commissioner of HPD, Jerilyn Perine.

          6                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Thank you.

          7                 Good afternoon, Chairwoman

          8  Provenzano, and the members of the City Council's

          9  Committee on Housing and Buildings.

         10                 My name is Jerilyn Perine, and I'm

         11  the Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         12  Housing, Preservation and Development, and I

         13  appreciate the opportunity to appear before you

         14  today to testify in strong support of Resolution

         15  690, and Intro. No. 367.

         16                 To my right is Joe Rosenberg, he's

         17  Deputy Commissioner at HPD for Planning and

         18  Inter-Governmental Affairs. To my left is Harold

         19  Schultz, HPD Special Counsel, and to his left is Dr.

         20  Moon Wha Lee, who is our Assistant Commissioner for

         21  Statistics and Research Analysis, who's actually the

         22  author of the Housing and Vacancy Survey.

         23                 These measures would constitute the

         24  local determination as to the continuation of a

         25  housing emergency in the City of New York and would
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          2  permit the extension of the Rent Control and Rent

          3  Stabilization Laws in the City for another three

          4  years.

          5                 This local determination is, as you

          6  know, required to be made by the City on or before

          7  April 1st.  As you also know, rent control and rent

          8  stabilization are due to end on June 15th of this

          9  year.  For rent control and rent stabilization to

         10  continue, the State Legislature must pass and the

         11  Governor must sign legislation continuing rent

         12  control and rent stabilization.

         13                 The purpose of my testimony today is

         14  to present the initial findings of the 2002 New York

         15  City Housing and Vacancy Survey, the HVS.  This

         16  survey of the City's housing stock has been carried

         17  out regularly by the US Census Bureau, beginning in

         18  1965.  To provide the basis for the Council's

         19  declaration of a housing emergency, the local Rent

         20  Control Law, and the Emergency Tenant Protection Act

         21  of 1974 set forth the obligation of the City to

         22  conduct every three years a survey of the supply of

         23  housing accommodations, the condition of such

         24  accommodations and the need for continuing the

         25  regulation and control of residential rents and
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          2  evictions in the City.

          3                 The law requires that the results of

          4  the survey be presented to the City Council.  As for

          5  all surveys since the first in 1965, the City

          6  retained the US Bureau of the Census to conduct the

          7  2002 New York City Housing and Vacancy Survey in

          8  order to estimate the vacancy rate of rental

          9  housing, the supply and condition of the housing

         10  accommodations in the City, and the other essential

         11  housing and household characteristics necessary for

         12  determining the need for continuing rent control and

         13  rent stabilization.

         14                 According to that survey conducted

         15  between February and June of 2002, the vacancy rate

         16  in rental apartments in the City of New York as a

         17  whole was 2.94 percent, well below the five- percent

         18  vacancy rate threshold set forth in the local rent

         19  control law as the condition for determining that a

         20  housing emergency continues to exist in the City.

         21                 The survey also determined the

         22  vacancy rate for apartments categorized by rents.

         23  The rental vacancy rate in 2002 for units with

         24  monthly asking rents or less than $700 per month was

         25  less than two percent.  The rate was 1.54 percent
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          2  for units with asking rents of less than $500 per

          3  month, and 1.42 percent for units with asking rents

          4  between 500 and $699 per month.

          5                 Starting with asking rents in $700 to

          6  799- dollar range, the availability of vacant rental

          7  units steadily increases.  The vacancy rate for

          8  units with asking rents of $700 to 799 was 2.61

          9  percent.  The rate for units with asking rents of

         10  800 to $999 per month was 3.66 percent.  And the

         11  vacancy rate move up close to five percent as asking

         12  rent levels rise further. It was 4.36 percent for

         13  units with an asking rent level of 1,000 to $1,749

         14  per month.  The vacancy range for units with asking

         15  rents of $1750 or more climbed sharply to 9.25

         16  percent.  The rate for units with asking rents of

         17  $2,000 or more inched up further to 10.05 percent,

         18  the highest vacancy rate among the various rent

         19  levels measured in the HVS.

         20                 The total number of housing units in

         21  New York City was 3,209,000 in 2002, the largest

         22  housing stock since the first HVS was conducted in

         23  1965.  The number of rental units was 2,085,000,

         24  comprising 65 percent of the overall housing stock

         25  in 2002.  The number of owner units was 997,000,
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          2  comprising 31.1 percent of the  total stock.  A

          3  hundred and twenty seven thousand units comprising

          4  3.9 percent were vacant, unavailable units.  For

          5  occupied units, the homeownership (sic) rate for the

          6  City as a whole was 32. Percent in 2002, that is one

          7  in three households in New York City was an owner

          8  household.

          9                 In 2002, the total number of vacant

         10  units was 76,000 units; 61,000 were vacant rental

         11  units, and 15,000 were vacant units available for

         12  sale.

         13                 The number of vacant units not

         14  available for sale or rent was 127,000 units in

         15  2002.  Of these, 40,000 units were classified as

         16  unavailable because they were undergoing or awaiting

         17  renovation; 14,000 had been rented or sold but were

         18  not yet occupied; 5400 units were dilapidated;

         19  43,000 units were held for occasional, seasonal or

         20  recreational use; 18,000 units were in legal dispute

         21  or vacant because of personal problems of the owner,

         22  and nearly 6,000 units were vacant for various other

         23  miscellaneous reasons.

         24                 In 2002 housing conditions in the

         25  City were the best since the HVS started covering
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          2  them.  Building condition was notably good and the

          3  best since 1965.  Of all occupied units a mere .5

          4  percent were in dilapidated buildings.  The

          5  dilapidation rate for renter occupied units was .6

          6  percent.  The 2002 dilapidation rates were the

          7  lowest for a 37- year period, since the first HVS in

          8  1965.  Housing maintenance conditions remain very

          9  good.

         10                 The proportion of renter occupied

         11  units with five or more of the seven maintenance

         12  deficiencies reported in the HVS was extremely low,

         13  only four percent.  Neighborhood quality also

         14  remained very good.

         15                 The proportion of renter households

         16  near buildings with broken or boarded up windows was

         17  only 8.7 percent. The proportion of renter

         18  households that rated the quality of their

         19  neighborhood residential structures as good or

         20  excellent was 69 percent.

         21                 On the other hand, the crowding

         22  situation in the City remained serious in 2002.  The

         23  proportion of renter households that were crowded

         24  rated at more than one person per room was 11.1

         25  percent.
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          2                 In 2001, the median annual income for

          3  all households in the City of New York was $39,000.

          4  The median annual income for renter households alone

          5  was $31,000, only 80 percent of the median income of

          6  all New York City households. The median annual

          7  income of homeowners was $60,000, more than one and

          8  a half times that of all households and almost

          9  double that of renter households.

         10                 In 2002, the median monthly gross

         11  rent, which includes utility payments as well was

         12  $788, while the medial monthly contract rent, which

         13  excludes payments for utilities was $706.  The

         14  median gross rent income ratio was 28.6 percent in

         15  2002, that is half of renters paid close to 30

         16  percent of their household income for gross rent,

         17  including utilities.  More than a quarter of renter

         18  households paid more than 50 percent of their

         19  household income for gross rent.  Half paid more

         20  than 30 percent of their cross income for rent.

         21                 In summary, the 2002 HVS reports that

         22  the City's total inventory of residential units was

         23  3.2 million, the largest housing stock since the

         24  first HVS was conducted in 1965.  The survey also

         25  reports that housing conditions, and particularly
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          2  building conditions in the City were the best since

          3  the HVS started covering them.  Until adjustments

          4  are made by the US Bureau of the Census, the numbers

          5  in the 2002 HVS are not comparable with the numbers

          6  reported in prior surveys for the following reasons:

          7                 The HVS is a sample survey.  That

          8  sample was selected from the 2000 decennial census.

          9  As you know, New York City's Department of City

         10  Planning worked very closely with the Census Bureau

         11  prior to the 2000 census to help the Census Bureau

         12  identify housing units that had been missed in prior

         13  censuses.

         14                 To assist the Census Bureau in

         15  compiling a complete list of addresses,

         16  approximately 370,000 addresses were added by City

         17  Planning to the Census Bureau address list.

         18  Therefore, the sample taken for the 2002 HVS is

         19  different from the samples used for the 1999 and

         20  1996 HVS.

         21                 I would also add that this happens

         22  with every HVS that follows a decennial census,

         23  there's always an adjustment.  This year the

         24  adjustment is greater because of the extraordinary

         25  effort the City went through in the 2000 census to
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          2  make sure that we had the most accurate count that

          3  we could.  As a result the numbers in the 2002 HVS

          4  data are not yet comparable with the numbers

          5  reported in prior surveys.  We have asked the Census

          6  Bureau to recompute the 1999 and 1996 results in

          7  light of the 2002 survey.  We expect those results

          8  to be available over the summer.

          9                 During the last several years, HPD's

         10  programs have increased affordable housing

         11  opportunities, including homeownership

         12  opportunities, and have helped revitalize New York

         13  City's neighborhoods.  HPD's rehabilitation,

         14  critical repair, and comprehensive anti- abandonment

         15  programs have helped improve the conditions of the

         16  existing housing stock and have helped preserve them

         17  to house another generation of New Yorkers.

         18                 HPD builds public/private

         19  partnerships that promote investment in housing and

         20  community development.  As a result of these and

         21  other initiatives, including tax- incentive

         22  programs, between June, 1999 and June, 2002, exactly

         23  the same period of time as between the '99 and 2002

         24  vacancy surveys, HPD's programs created 11,787 homes

         25  and apartments through new construction and gut-
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          2  rehabilitation programs.

          3                 HPD also financed the moderate

          4  rehabilitation of another 14,678 housing units

          5  during the same three- year period, and approved

          6  more than $363,000,000 in J- 51 tax abatements to

          7  modernize or rehabilitate 264,608 housing units

          8  across the City.

          9                 With regard to J- 51, less than two

         10  weeks ago the Council passed a very important

         11  initiative which extends the J- 51 program to

         12  December 31st, 2007, and also creates a new enriched

         13  benefit that will allow owners of private buildings

         14  undergoing gut- rehabilitations through a

         15  governmental loan to receive a 34 year benefit.  The

         16  key here is that all the units rehabilitated and

         17  produced must be affordable.

         18                 This bill, Intro. 282A, will be of

         19  tremendous help in revitalizing neighborhoods and

         20  commercial corridors throughout the City, and I

         21  wanted to thank Chairwoman Provenzano for sponsoring

         22  and supporting this initiative and for the Committee

         23  to have passed it and the Council as a whole.

         24  It has previously passed the State Legislature last

         25  June and will be signed into law by the Mayor in
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          2  three days.

          3                 HPD has also counseled about 1,000

          4  owners, mostly small owners, on a one- to- one-

          5  basis about effectively managing and maintaining

          6  their buildings, and providing various classes on

          7  building maintenance and management to 12,000

          8  people.

          9                 Owners of 852 buildings, containing

         10  more than 14,000 units complied with HPD repair

         11  agreements, to voluntarily repair their buildings

         12  and units.  In addition, HPD transferred 132

         13  properties with 16,000 units to for- profit and not-

         14  for- profit real estate managers, as well as to low-

         15  income tenant cooperatives.

         16                 However, we still have enormous tasks

         17  ahead to address a housing shortage that has existed

         18  in the City since the time of the Civil War, and to

         19  address issues of affordability and crowding.

         20                 In fact, according to the 2000 census

         21  the City's population grew by 686,000 people between

         22  1990 and 2000, while other cities in the Middle-

         23  Atlantic and Midwest, such as Buffalo, Rochester and

         24  Syracuse in New York State, Philadelphia, Detroit

         25  and Baltimore lost sizeable populations.
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          2            Mayor Bloomberg's housing agenda, "The New

          3  Housing Marketplace:  Creating Housing for the Next

          4  Generation," builds on our momentum in developing

          5  and preserving housing.  To address the City's

          6  housing needs the Mayor's plan includes several new

          7  initiatives and enhancements to a number of existing

          8  programs to increase housing production and leverage

          9  private financing to build more housing in the City.

         10                 In addition to the Mayor's three-

         11  billion- dollar plan, which will create and preserve

         12  more than 65,000 homes and apartments in the City's

         13  neighborhoods in the next five years, the Mayor's

         14  vision for Lower Manhattan plans to create another

         15  10,000 units of housing.

         16                 In conclusion, although the Census

         17  Bureau's 2002 HVS data indicates significant

         18  improvements in housing conditions and the housing

         19  inventory, they also show a continuing serious

         20  shortage of rental housing in New York City.

         21  Accordingly, given the shortage, the standards for

         22  continuing rent control and rent stabilization in

         23  the City have been met and justify the extension of

         24  both for an additional three years.

         25                 Thank you, and we would be happy to
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          2  answer any questions that you have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          4  Commissioner.

          5                 I'd like to introduce the members of

          6  the Committee.  To my right we have Leroy Comrie.

          7  Next to him is Council Member Kendall Stewart.  We

          8  have Councilwoman Melinda Katz.  To my left,

          9  Councilman Tony Avella and Councilwoman Diana Reyna.

         10  Councilman Robert Jackson hiding in the back.

         11                 Council Member Stewart, you have a

         12  question?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:   Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 Commissioner, do you have a formula

         16  or can you tell me what's the formula you use for

         17  stating affordable?  What is affordable?  How do you

         18  determine that an apartment is affordable?  How do

         19  you arrive at that?  Could you give me a definition?

         20                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Well, when we

         21  talk about affordable units we're really talking

         22  about those units that are being developed or

         23  preserved through our programs and there are very

         24  specific guidelines in each program; they're going

         25  to vary. Our home ownership programs tend to have,
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          2  you know, an income range for affordability anywhere

          3  from households of about 35,000 -- $35,000, I'm

          4  sorry, up to about, you know, $75,000 or a little

          5  bit more in some programs.  It's going to vary.

          6                 In our rental programs, depending on

          7  the kind of subsidies that we're using a lot of our

          8  units are often capped at 80 percent of median, but

          9  in that regard we're talking about the federally

         10  established median income, which is for the whole

         11  SMSA, not just the City's numbers which are just

         12  reflected in the income here.  So the federal median

         13  income for the City of New York for this region is

         14  $62,000, which is slightly higher than what we show

         15  as the median strictly for the City of New York.  So

         16  it's going to vary by program and it also varies

         17  based on our funding sources, that's about the

         18  range.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What I want

         20  to ask basically, to the public how do you explain

         21  if I'm making $50,000, how would I know that my

         22  apartment is affordable? That's what I'm trying to

         23  get out.

         24                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Well, in

         25  general affordability bans are established by the
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          2  standard that is pretty standard in the housing

          3  industry anyway is 30 percent of your income going

          4  towards rent.  As I talked -- I mean, I talked about

          5  in my testimony sort of how many households, what

          6  percentage of our households fall within or without

          7  that category.  For an individual person that's

          8  pretty much the measure.  What we see in New York is

          9  obviously many of our households actually pay more

         10  than that in rent, and that's, you know, certainly a

         11  function of our extremely low vacancy rate.

         12            So -- but when I talk about affordability,

         13  when I talk about affordability in terms of a

         14  standard in HVS it's pretty much set as 30 percent

         15  is what we measure, but when I talk about

         16  affordability in terms of our production it's really

         17  driven by our program guidelines, which are also

         18  establishing what people are paying based on a 30-

         19  percent ratio, but the incomes themselves vary,

         20  based on the program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I think it

         22  also includes the amount of people in that home.

         23  You're talking --

         24                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yeah.  Usually

         25  I'm talking about a household income for a family of
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          2  four.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  But, you know,

          5  obviously all of these statistics go down to a one-

          6  person family, but then all the numbers would be a

          7  little different.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         11  Member Katz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Good afternoon,

         13  Commissioner, and thank you once again.  You seem to

         14  be a staple at these meetings and we appreciate

         15  that.  We appreciate your testimony and, of course,

         16  the Mayor and your support for renewal of rent

         17  regulations.

         18                 I have a few questions though, if you

         19  read the resolution that I carry with the speaker, I

         20  not only ask for renewal by the State Legislature, I

         21  also ask for the high vacancy, decontrol to be

         22  eliminated and all of that, and I was wondering if

         23  you have any opinion or the Mayor has an opinion on

         24  the high vacancy, decontrol?

         25                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  We're

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  supporting the extension of rent regulation as they

          3  stand.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  All right.

          5                 Can I just ask you a few questions,

          6  and it might help us in our argument in order to fix

          7  that, that we can maybe use for support?  And can

          8  you give us an idea of where the apartments are that

          9  have been deregulated because of high vacancy

         10  decontrol?

         11                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Actually, I

         12  don't know that, I mean, DHCR actually monitors the

         13  vacancy decontrol process. And, you know, I think I

         14  just want to offer like a note of caution in terms

         15  of the units that are registered -- the units that

         16  we talk about in the HVS that are in rent

         17  stabilization are based on the US Census Bureau's

         18  sample.  So they are -- it's DHCR that is actually

         19  counting the specific units that they are taking out

         20  of rent stabilization based on luxury decontrol.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You don't have

         22  those figures?

         23                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  I don't.  I

         24  think we have a ballpark idea of what DHCR is

         25  counting for, but they're really the source for that
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          2  data.  HVS would not tell you that also.  I mean

          3  what HVS will be able to tell us once we get the re

          4  forecasted '99 numbers over the summer is the

          5  change, the gross change between rent stabilized

          6  units in '99 versus 2002.

          7                 I can't tell you that system- wide

          8  right now because of the problems with comparing it

          9  to the '99 data that I talked about.  But again,

         10  DHCR should be able to report an official number to

         11  you as to how many they believe came out

         12  specifically because of luxury decontrol, because

         13  keep in mind units can come out for other reasons as

         14  well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I missed the

         16  last part.  I was finding out if DHCR will be

         17  joining us, and they're not.

         18                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Well, I'm just

         19  saying that, you know, they should be the source of

         20  the correct piece of information for that data, and

         21  you should keep in mind in terms of the HVS data

         22  there can be other reasons that bring units out of

         23  rent stabilization.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yeah.  I would

         25  just figure that there somewhere has to be a record
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          2  of those units that are getting decontrolled.

          3                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yeah, that

          4  would be DHCR.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Because of

          6  prior DHCR control.

          7                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yeah, that

          8  wouldn't come out of HVS.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  Do you

         10  have a sense of how many rent regulated tenants are

         11  in each borough?

         12                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Probably we

         13  would have households, and people will look that up,

         14  and we can tell you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  If you can tell

         16  me, out of curiosity, please, not only the last

         17  figure but the figure before, if you have that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'm trying to

         20  make comparisons.

         21                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Okay.  We may

         22  not have them. If we don't have them here -- do we

         23  have them?  We do have them, so we'll get them to

         24  you.

         25                 Again, the '99 numbers, you know, are
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          2  certainly -- well, they're published in the HVS, I

          3  mean, they're right there. We can certainly give

          4  them to you.  We can give you the '99, the entire

          5  book if you don't have it, but again, the '99

          6  numbers are not going to be comparable to 2002 until

          7  the summer when the Census Bureau makes it

          8  adjustment, going backwards.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  We think there

         11  was a big under count.  I mean, that's really the

         12  issue and we saw that in the 2000 census, and I

         13  think that's reflected in the 2002 HVS. What we

         14  don't know is how much of the differences between --

         15  how much of that under count, which now got counted

         16  in the 2000 census is going to change our historic

         17  numbers going back to '96 and '99.  We just don't

         18  know that yet.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Oh, you don't

         20  have those numbers for us?

         21                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  I

         23  thought you said you did.

         24                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Oh, the borough

         25  numbers.  We don't have it.  We'll get that for you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  It would

          3  be helpful not only for this year but also for the

          4  year before.  If we can't tell from your agency how

          5  many permits are, you know, not decontrolled then I

          6  think that we may be able to make a comparison from

          7  year to year.  I was wondering which borough has

          8  more decontrolled.

          9                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yeah.  Again,

         10  you can't make those comparisons with the '99

         11  numbers until -- I mean, you can, but they're not

         12  going to be the same numbers, and so it's going to

         13  be misleading till we get those adjustments.  We're

         14  happy to give them to you though.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  All right.  Do

         16  you have a sense of how many apartments are rated

         17  between about 1700 a month and 1900, or $1990 a

         18  month?

         19                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  If you have

         21  those numbers I'd like them.

         22                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  We can get that

         23  to you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do you have it

         25  now?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  No.

          3                 You just want to know the total

          4  number of --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'd like to

          6  know how many apartments --

          7                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yeah.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- That are

          9  regulated right now in the City of New York and in

         10  what boroughs they are --

         11                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- That have a

         13  chance, and the next time they are vacant to be

         14  going up to $2,000 a month and obviously

         15  decontrolled.

         16                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I mean, with

         18  everything else.

         19                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Keep in mind it

         20  won't have -- it won't be matched to the income ban

         21   --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I know that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  -- Because

         24  there's an income test as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I mean keeping
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          2  in mind the other criteria.

          3                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'd like to

          5  know how many apartments.

          6                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  We can give you

          7  the gross number of apartments that rent at the

          8  different rental bans.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Per borough.

         10                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Please.

         12                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  We can do that.

         13    We can do it within the bands that get reported in

         14  HVS.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  All right.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have been

         18  joined by Council Member Gale Brewer.

         19                 Are there any more questions for the

         20  Commissioner?

         21                 Commissioner, we thank you and your

         22  staff.

         23                 COMMISSIONER PERINE:  Okay.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Brooklyn
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          2  Borough President Marty Markowitz, I see you back

          3  there somewhere.

          4                 Thank you for joining us.

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Thank

          6  you very, very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  If it's off,

          8  it's on.

          9                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:

         10  Testing.  Oh, there you go.

         11                 Thank you very, very much for

         12  inviting me.  First off, I want to say if I can, in

         13  the beginning with the acceleration of decontrol

         14  with more units leaving the rent control inventory,

         15  with the increased numbers of Mitchell-Lama buyouts

         16  there's no doubt that rent regulation in our City is

         17  under siege.  So I want to say right at the offset,

         18  just renewing what we got now is unacceptable.

         19  Unacceptable.

         20                 I've made affordable housing and

         21  decent housing for all Brooklynites (sic) my highest

         22  priority my whole career. My office will be and has

         23  been a primary advocate for tenants rights in

         24  Brooklyn.  And as we all know, every City Council

         25  Member knows for sure that the City is facing a
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          2  severe, affordable housing crisis.  Current

          3  resources for creating and maintaining affordable

          4  housing even with the recent announcement by our

          5  Mayor is still insufficient.  Twenty- five percent

          6  of families are paying more than half their income

          7  on rents.

          8                 Therefore, we must ensure that rent

          9  protection laws are renewed and strengthened.  It is

         10  irresponsible to all the State's supply of

         11  affordable housing to decrease when the need is so

         12  great, and while we must preserve rent regulations

         13  for thousands of middle income residents.  As I said

         14  before, extending the present laws are not good

         15  enough.  Each time rent regulations sunset,

         16  landlords try to weaken them or phase them out.

         17                 Weakened City and State rent laws

         18  threaten to end protection for thousands --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Excuse me,

         20  Marty.

         21                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  This will be

         23  a very long meeting.  So we'd like to help keep it a

         24  little bit shorter.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Please, hold

          3  your applause.  You could all go outside with Marty

          4  when he leaves and pat him on the back.

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  And

          9  I'll pat them on the back too, but thanks.

         10                 Weakened City and State rent laws

         11  threaten to end rent protection for thousands of

         12  tenants in rent regulated apartments.  Excessive

         13  annual increases approved by the Rent Guidelines

         14  Board threaten affordability.

         15                 As rents increase to the point of

         16  decontrol, the erosion and loss of regulated housing

         17  stock accelerates.  This must be stopped, and the

         18  only way to do that is to repeal damaging amendments

         19  such as vacancy decontrol.

         20                 The current 2000 per month automatic

         21  vacancy decontrol encourages building owners to do

         22  whatever they must to justify raising rents to the

         23  2,000- dollar level, when they reach their promised

         24  land where units are no longer regulated.

         25  Deregulated apartments are well beyond
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          2  affordability, especially in Brooklyn where one-

          3  third of our families live below the Federal poverty

          4  level.

          5                 Unless vacancy decontrol is repealed,

          6  rent regulations will be removed, and New York City

          7  will lose all stabilized units perhaps within as

          8  short as 10 years.  This is why preservation of

          9  affordable housing is absolutely essential. It is

         10  certainly more physically responsible to retain

         11  affordable units than to build new ones.

         12                 Unless luxury decontrol is

         13  eliminated, Brooklyn stands to lose more than other

         14  boroughs, since we have the highest numbers of

         15  renters in the City, and 145,000 renter households

         16  spend at least half their incomes on housing.  Last

         17  year alone there were more than 6,000 evictions in

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 Clearly Brooklyn has a severe housing

         20  crisis, and housing conditions that are

         21  unsustainable for many of its residents.  And by

         22  abandoning rent regulations and maintaining luxury

         23  decontrol, millions of New Yorkers will be subjected

         24  to high rent increases and illegal evictions.

         25  Instead, by renewing, strengthening and expanding
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          2  City and State rent laws now much of our affordable

          3  housing will be preserved.

          4                 Therefore, I fully support New York

          5  City Council Resolutions 690, 691, 692 and Intro.

          6  No. 367, which seek to repeal the Urstadt Law,

          7  eliminate vacancy decontrol, extend City rent

          8  stabilization laws, urge the State to extend rent

          9  regulation laws to 2008, and I look forward to

         10  joining all of the tenants in Brooklyn, up in Albany

         11  May 13th with the rest of the City.

         12                 Let me just conclude, if I may.  I

         13  was a State Senator for 23 years.  In the senate

         14  republican controlled, and I know that having a home

         15  rule message from the City Council, as important as

         16  it is, will not solve this issue.  It won't.  And

         17  that's why it's important that the City Council

         18  Members make the statement, I know you will.  Then

         19  we have to mobilize and make sure that we show up in

         20  numbers up in Albany, and to make it clear to the

         21  senate republicans that represent districts in New

         22  York City where tenants live, that their first

         23  obligation must be to the people they serve rather

         24  than to other interest.

         25                 And I hope that we'll succeed this
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          2  year because it's obvious that when this rule --

          3  when we passed legislation years ago to extend rent

          4  regulations the last time we knew that by setting

          5  this 2,000- dollar level we knew that what would

          6  happen, it would greatly accelerate decontrol in New

          7  York City, but we were up against the wall you might

          8  say.  But we're not up against the wall this time,

          9  and it's very, very important that all of us, all of

         10  us that represent all of New York City make sure

         11  that we renew our rent laws, eliminate vacancy

         12  control, review the amortization of major capital

         13  improvement increase, revisit the Mitchell- Lama

         14  buyouts, extend the loft laws to Brooklyn and other

         15  locations and ensure that affordable housing will be

         16  there for people that want to stay and live in New

         17  York City.  They deserve it, and I know you agree as

         18  well.

         19                 Thank you very, very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Borough

         21  President. Thank you.

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Thank

         23  you very, very much, my pleasure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We're

         25  expecting the Manhattan Borough President, but she's
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          2  not here yet.  We will start the public section.

          3  You will be limited.

          4                 Oh, I'm sorry.  Council Member

          5  Kendall Stewart has a question for you.

          6                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Mr.

          8  Brooklyn, I have some concerns about quite a number

          9  of the vacant lots that we have in East New York.

         10  They're not in my district, but they're in East New

         11  York, and East New York is part of Brooklyn, and I'm

         12  from Brooklyn.  And I know your concern about the

         13  housing problem that they have.

         14                 I've learned that quite a number of

         15  these vacant lots are being ordered by developers,

         16  who buy these lots and keep them, sit on them for a

         17  while, and even those who are building on these

         18  lots, these vacant land, what they do basically is

         19  have an agreement with the City to give maybe 15

         20  percent affordable at the rest at market rate.  To

         21  me that 85 percent that is at market rate is really

         22  not affordable to anybody around that area of

         23  Brooklyn, and I would like to know what suggestions

         24  would you have for us to really correct that

         25  inequity and for the people of Brooklyn?
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Well,

          3  Councilman, let me speak about the lots, property

          4  that has been sold.  I've been honored to attend

          5  many events in the Borough in East New York and in

          6  Ocean Hill, Brownsville, where construction of two

          7  family or three- family homes has been accelerated.

          8  The Office of Borough President, and I'm sure the

          9  other offices in the City provide housing subsidies,

         10  so that for homeowners affordability for the

         11  moderate income homeowner becomes a reality.

         12                 Everyone dreams, most everyone dreams

         13  of owning a home.  I never did.  I'm a tenant, and

         14  I'll always be one, but many people want to own

         15  their own property.  And I believe that many

         16  programs exist in New York City, Councilman, that I

         17  believe are making that dream a reality for two and

         18  three- family homes. Now there are other areas

         19  where, in fact, property is going up. New apartment

         20  building especially, where the owners are not

         21  depending upon any City money, and, in fact, what

         22  happens is their rents are at market rate, which by

         23  in large most folks in Brooklyn cannot afford, and

         24  that has to be revisited.

         25                 Meaning, when we make these lots
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          2  available, and then they're purchased by developers

          3  that perhaps part of the condition of their purchase

          4  must be that they must affirm their pledge to build

          5  affordable housing, provided that we provide the

          6  subsidies to make that possible.  Because if you

          7  don't provide the subsidies, building affordable

          8  housing is challenged because the cost of

          9  construction and everything else requires some level

         10  of City and State commitment.

         11                 By the way, the City, the Mayor has

         12  taken a good step forward, but the Governor and the

         13  State Legislature abandon, in my opinion, housing

         14  when the Mitchell- Lama Law ended.  The Mitchell-

         15  Lama Law was the most successful housing program

         16  that New York State ever had, and it's a horror to

         17  see it being dismantled now, and that's what we

         18  need.  We need a marshall plan called Mitchell- Lama

         19  once again in the State, in the City of New York.

         20                 Thank you, Councilman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 Any other questions?

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:  Thank

         25  you, I appreciate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Once again

          3  we will start with the public section.  There will

          4  be a three- minute clock, and I will strictly adhere

          5  to the three minutes.  There are many, many people

          6  who wish to speak.

          7                 Again, please respect those who are

          8  speaking, and respect their views.

          9                 Dawn Sullivan, we have you first on

         10  our agenda. Michael McKee and Barbara Katz.

         11                 Michael McKee?  Yes, we're bringing

         12  you up in threes.

         13                 Dawn, are you ready?

         14                 MS. SULLIVAN:  Yes.  Thank you.

         15                 My name is Dawn Sullivan.  I'm chair

         16  of the East Side Tenants Coalition, which represents

         17  thousands of tenants on the east side of Manhattan.

         18  I'll be rather brief in my comments, and I won't

         19  give you lots of statistics that other groups will

         20  be covering.

         21                 We do want to go on the record in

         22  urging you to pass Intro. 367, extending rent

         23  stabilization laws; and Resolution 690, allowing for

         24  the continuation of rent control.

         25                 This year the Council must act to
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          2  undo the disastrous damage it did in 1994 with

          3  vacancy and luxury decontrol.  A starting point

          4  would be to pass Resolution 692, supporting Assembly

          5  Bill A2716- A, which renews the laws and ends

          6  vacancy decontrol as one of their main points.

          7                 I've been a housing advocate since

          8  the early '70s, and it is heartbreaking to witness

          9  the continual loss of affordable housing.  Before

         10  vacancy decontrol in 1971, tenants could actually

         11  move around the City to different neighborhoods.

         12  Vacancy decontrol cost us 400,000 affordable units

         13  that have never been replaced because no affordable

         14  housing has been built since 1974.

         15                 You can and must support Resolution

         16  691, to overturn the Urstadt Law.  We need home

         17  rule, and the State should not have control over our

         18  housing laws and our lives.

         19                 Another important issue before you is

         20  Intro. 169, to repeal the maximum base rent formula

         21  for rent controlled units.  It's high time rent

         22  controlled tenants got some type of relief, and

         23  increases should be set by the Rent Guidelines

         24  Board.

         25                 I do telephone counseling, and every
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          2  month I get dozens of calls from non- regulated

          3  tenants that I cannot help. They are totally at the

          4  mercy of unscrupulous owners, regardless of how much

          5  rent they pay.  They have to put up with poor

          6  services, lack of repairs, and extensive rent

          7  increases.  We can't have a fair housing market as

          8  long as the supply cannot meet the demand.  The

          9  term, "market rent" is a highly inflated rent that

         10  the real estate industry is trying to pass off as a

         11  norm.  Please protect what regulated housing we have

         12  left.  You can make a difference, and you must make

         13  a difference.

         14                 I would just like to add on the

         15  personal issue -- that was East Side Tenants

         16  Coalition testimony.  In my building, we're facing a

         17  63- dollar increase per room for MCIs, and the most

         18  shabby work you could imagine.  It would be criminal

         19  for us to pay for the pointing and the windows and

         20  the roof that they have put in place, and this is

         21  what tenants are facing all over this City.

         22                 Vacancy decontrol is destroying,

         23  solely destroying out neighborhoods.  Every time

         24  somebody moves out, regardless of the rent level,

         25  that rent goes up over 2,000, regardless of what it
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          2  was previously.  So please help us by passing these

          3  good resolutions.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          6  Dawn.

          7                 Mr. McKee?

          8                 MR. MC KEE:  Good afternoon.  My name

          9  is Michael McKee.  I'm the Associate Director of

         10  Tenants & Neighbors.  With me is Barbara Elstein

         11  Katz, the author of "The End of Rent Regulation" a

         12  study published by our affiliate, the Tenants &

         13  Neighbors Information Service earlier this month.

         14                 Tenants & Neighbors supports the

         15  resolution and the Intro. To extend rent control and

         16  rent stabilization for another three years.  We also

         17  support Resolution 691, calling for repeal for the

         18  Urstadt Law.  It's about time the Council pass such

         19  a resolution because the Council has stonewalled

         20  this issue over 30 years.  And we support Resolution

         21  692, calling for the State Senate to pass Assembly

         22  Bill 2716- A.

         23                 This action by the Council is all

         24  good of course as far as it goes.  Resolutions are

         25  very nice, but except for Resolution 690 they are
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          2  merely advisory and can be ignored by State

          3  Legislators.  The Council needs to do more than

          4  simply renew the rent laws.  In particular, the

          5  Council needs to provide rent relief to hard-

          6  pressed tenants and rent controlled apartments,

          7  protect kids from lead poisoning, and reform the

          8  Rent Guidelines Board process.

          9                 We call for immediate passage of

         10  Intro. 152, sponsored by Council Member Quinn and

         11  others.  This bill repeals the fuel pass along for

         12  rent controlled apartments, and puts the fuel

         13  component back into the MBR formula, reversing a

         14  local law of 1980.

         15                 We also support Intro. 196, sponsored

         16  by Council Member Quinn and others, that would end

         17  the unfair maximum base rent system, and place rent

         18  controlled apartments under the jurisdiction of the

         19  New York City Rent Guidelines Boards.

         20                 However, in light of the real

         21  property tax rate increase that the Council and the

         22  Mayor proposed last year, it might be unwise for you

         23  to pass this bill at this time because we could

         24  actually end up with one year lease rent adjustment

         25  of more than seven- and- a half percent, and it
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          2  would be terribly ironic if rent controlled tenants

          3  finally got rid of the MBR and found themselves

          4  facing a rent increase of more than seven- and- a-

          5  half percent.

          6                 We also strongly support Intro. 101,

          7  the Childhood Lead Poisoning Act; I'm not going to

          8  read my testimony.

          9                 We are also supporting legislation to

         10  reform the rent guidelines process.  There has been

         11  no bill introduced yet, but I've attached some

         12  information here about the Rent Guidelines Board

         13  process, how unfair it is at the moment to tenants,

         14  how it has always been unfair to tenants, and how we

         15  believe the Council has the power to reform it.

         16                 Finally, we are asking members of the

         17  Council to help us with the massive Tenant Day of

         18  Action on Tuesday, May 13th.  On that day, a month

         19  before the state rent laws expire, thousands of

         20  tenants and our supporters will assemble in Albany

         21  to call for stronger rent laws.  We ask that each

         22  member of the City Council sponsor at least one bus

         23  for that day, that you not only pay for the bus, but

         24  you recruit your constituents to fill it, and that

         25  you go with our to Albany, to stand with us to call
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          2  for stronger rent laws now.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. McKee.

          6                 MR. MC KEE:  Yeah.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Miss Katz,

          8  are you speaking?

          9                 MS. KATZ:  Yes.

         10                 Good afternoon.  My name is Barbara

         11  Katz, and I wrote a report at the behest of Tenants

         12  & Neighbors.  For many years I worked for Dr. Lee at

         13  HPD, and I'm very familiar with the Housing and

         14  Vacancy Survey.

         15                 New York City is losing affordable

         16  rental housing at an alarming rate.  These losses

         17  result mainly from the conversion of rent controlled

         18  and rent stabilized units to market rents, as well

         19  as the withdraw of landlords from government

         20  subsidized Mitchell- Lama and project based Section

         21  8 programs.

         22                 The conversion of rent regulated

         23  apartments is primarily due to vacancy decontrol,

         24  and the increasing rate of these conversions

         25  threatens the continued existence of rent
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          2  regulation.  An end to rent control and rent

          3  stabilization would result in catastrophic worsening

          4  of the housing crisis in New York City, and unless

          5  vacancy decontrol is repealed, rent regulation will

          6  be phased out over the next several years.

          7                 I'm going to skip some of this, but I

          8  hope you'll read the testimony, and I urge you to

          9  read the report that you've all been given entitled,

         10   "The End of Rent Regulation."  The highlights of

         11  the report are that rent control and rent

         12  stabilization protect an affordable housing stock of

         13  almost 1.1 million units in the City.  This is many

         14  times greater than the total number of public

         15  housing and subsidized housing units in the City.

         16                 Regulated units are much more

         17  affordable than similar rent unregulated units in

         18  almost all areas of the City. In every borough

         19  regulate units are substantially lower than

         20  unregulated rents in buildings with six or more

         21  units.  In fact, Citywide unregulated rents are 70

         22  percent higher.  Seventy percent higher than

         23  unregulated rents.

         24                 Tenants in regulated apartments have

         25  predominately low and middle incomes.  The median
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          2  household income in regulated units was 26,200 a

          3  year, and just over half the median for unregulated

          4  tenants have a lot more money and their median was

          5  51,000 a year.  Most tenants in regulated units do

          6  not live in Manhattan.  Sixty- five percent live

          7  outside Manhattan, and most regulated tenants are

          8  not white, 56.1 percent have a black, Hispanic, or

          9  Asian head of household.  These tenants depend on

         10  the continued existence of rent regulation in order

         11  to be able to afford to remain in their

         12  neighborhoods.

         13                 And I think you may be particularly

         14  interested in the comparison of rents in regulated

         15  and unregulated apartments rented in 1998, shown in

         16  Table 6.  What it shows is that recently rented

         17  apartments that were regulated rented for 700 a

         18  month; whereas unregulated apartments rented for

         19  more than twice as much, $1530 a month, and I'm

         20  afraid that this what we can expect in the coming

         21  years when we lose our regulated stock.

         22                 I guess my time is up.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

         24  please just sum up quickly?

         25                 MS. KATZ:  Okay.
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          2                 You have this data before you that

          3  the agency provided for you, HPD provided.  As they

          4  pointed out to you that data is not comparable to

          5  the data in this report because it's based on a

          6  different sample base, but we believe that the

          7  trends that we've identified in the 1999 data will

          8  prove to be true when we get the data that's been

          9  updated by the Census Bureau sometime in the summer.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         11                 If any of the Committee has questions

         12  for any one of the three, that's how we'll be doing

         13  it.  We'll call up three, then we'll wait till they

         14  finish and have questions.

         15                 Council Member Katz?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

         17  much for your testimony.

         18                 I have a few questions for Miss Katz

         19  and Mr. McKee, if I can?

         20                 First of all, Michael, I'm curious as

         21  to the rent guidelines.  Where I know it's not on

         22  out, one of the bills that we're talking about

         23  today, but how would you change it, and what would

         24  be the difference between how it exists now, and

         25  what would happen after you get your changes?
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          2                 MR. MC KEE:  Well, there's five pages

          3  of appendix here about the proposals that we have

          4  for changing the Rent Guidelines Board process.

          5                 The part of it is to end a

          6  misleading, one- sided methodology called, The Price

          7  Index of Operating Cost" which is a market basket

          8  approach.  The price index is a study which measures

          9  the changes of prices of items that landlords

         10  typically spend on maintaining their buildings, and

         11  it assumes that if the price of an item goes up that

         12  operating costs goes up.  It measures fuel oil,

         13  taxes.  It also measures things like the price of

         14  light bulbs, toilet seats, broom handles, and, in

         15  fact, the reality is if prices go up it doesn't

         16  necessarily mean that costs go up, especially in a

         17  year when you have rapid inflation as we will now

         18  have this year.  The price index this year is likely

         19  to be phenomenally high.  It's been very low for the

         20  last 10 years because operating costs have been

         21  pretty flat.

         22                 But despite the unreliability of the

         23  price index as a measure of landlords operating

         24  costs, the real problem with the methodology is that

         25  it's one sided.  It's simply unfair and misleading
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          2  and irrelevant to look at one side of the profit

          3  equation, to look at landlords operating costs while

          4  ignoring their income, and, in fact, the Rent

          5  Guidelines Board has received data from the

          6  Department of Finance, which landlords are required

          7  to file every year under Local Law 63, that shows a

          8  remarkable trend of the last decade of a greatly

          9  increased net operating income.  Meaning that rents

         10  have gone up much faster than operating costs; and,

         11  therefore, landlords net operating incomes have gone

         12  up, basically by 10 percentage points in the last

         13  decade.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So your change

         15  would add the landlords income.  Is that what you're

         16  saying?

         17                 MR. MC KEE:  No.  Our change would be

         18  to eliminate the price index, to bar its use, and to

         19  mandate the methodology that is now used in the

         20  suburban counties where the Rent Guidelines Boards

         21  require landlords to file annual income and expense

         22  reports with the Rent Guidelines Board.  And that's

         23  one reason we believe, probably the major reason

         24  that rent increases under rent stabilization outside

         25  of the City have been consistently lower than rent
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          2  increases in New York City.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And just very

          4  quickly, you mentioned fuel pass along.  You think

          5  we could do that without the Urstadt Law being

          6  repealed, don't you?

          7                 MR. MC KEE:  Well, I think that the

          8  City Council has the power to repeal the fuel pass

          9  along for rent controlled apartments.  First of all,

         10  the City Council enacted this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  1980, right?

         12                 MR. MC KEE:  In 1980.  It passed by a

         13  very close vote, and it had the effect, by the way,

         14  taking it out of the MBR formula --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right.

         16                 MR. MC KEE:  -- Had the effect of

         17  inflating the MBR formula, at the same time hitting

         18  rent controlled tenants with an additional rent

         19  increase for fuel.

         20                 I mean it would certainly be

         21  challenged by the real estate industry, but I want

         22  to remind you that when the Council clarified the

         23  MBR formula in 1997, and the real estate industry

         24  sued, the Council's action was upheld as not

         25  violative of the Urstadt Law all the way up to the
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          2  Court of Appeals.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  All

          4  right.  Thank you.

          5                 MR. MC KEE:  I mean, it's time the

          6  Council stopped hiding behind the Urstadt Law.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  There's not

          8  many places to hide.

          9                 Miss Katz, may I ask you, just I

         10  think you heard me when the Commissioner was here

         11  asking those questions --

         12                 MS. KATZ:  Yeah.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- And I really

         14  am curious, and I'd love to know, and the DHCR isn't

         15  here today.  In all fairness, I don't think that we

         16  asked them to be here today.

         17                 MS. KATZ:  Well, far be it for me to

         18  contradict the Commissioner who I worked for, for

         19  several years, but DHCR doesn't have those numbers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  That

         21  wasn't really what I -- why don't I just repeat the

         22  question.

         23                 MS. KATZ:  Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  First of all,

         25  you said 65 percent of the rent regulated apartments
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          2  are outside of Manhattan, right?

          3                 MS. KATZ:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do you have the

          5  numbers of where they are, the percentages in the

          6  other boroughs?

          7                 MS. KATZ:  Sure.  It's in the report

          8  that we've given you, and it's on Page 4.  And it

          9  shows about 18 percent in the Bronx.  It's close to

         10  200,000 units.  Twenty- seven percent in Brooklyn;

         11  35 percent in Manhattan; 19 percent in Queens, and

         12  one percent in Staten Island.  The exact numbers are

         13  in the report.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And do you have

         15  a sense or do you have the numbers of where the

         16  apartments are being deregulated because of high

         17  vacancy decontrol?

         18                 MS. KATZ:  Well, I can't tell you

         19  where the apartments have been deregulated.  What I

         20  can tell you is where deregulated apartments in

         21  buildings with six or more units are, and most of

         22  those apartments have been deregulated for two

         23  reasons.  Either because they're in a co- op condo

         24  building or because of vacancy decontrol.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.
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          2                 MS. KATZ:  And that's also on Page 4

          3  of the report, and 58 percent of those units are in

          4  Manhattan, but 42 percent of those units are outside

          5  of Manhattan; nine percent in the Bronx, 13 percent

          6  in Brooklyn, and 19 percent in your borough, in

          7  Queens, and in Staten Island there were too few

          8  because there were too few buildings that size in

          9  Staten Island. So it's a sizeable problem throughout

         10  the City.

         11                 Of course, the impact so far has been

         12  greatest in Manhattan because the rents are higher

         13  there, but as rents throughout the City increase,

         14  and continue to increase over the years the impact

         15  will be felt strongly in all boroughs in the City.

         16                 MR. MC KEE:  Could I add something

         17  about the number of units that have been

         18  deregulated?

         19                 Obviously, it's in the interest of

         20  the administration politically to de minimize the

         21  number of units that have been lost to deregulation

         22  because they don't want to deal with this issue.

         23  You know, the Mayor says he supports the

         24  continuation of rent control and rent stabilization,

         25  well, thank you very much.  Even Joe Bruno supports
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          2  the continuation of rent control and rent

          3  stabilization.

          4                 The Mayor doesn't want to deal with

          5  the issue of vacancy decontrol and why it needs to

          6  be repealed at a time when he is proposing to build

          7  new housing with City funds, which we think is --

          8  even though it's a fairly modest proposal it is

          9  still very good and commendable that the Mayor is

         10  proposing to build housing and to make some of it,

         11  at least, affordable.  But he's talking about 65,000

         12  units, and I know he's also talking about things

         13  that would make it possible for the private sector

         14  to build more housing, but we're going to lose four

         15  times, five times that in the same five- year period

         16  that he's proposing to build those 65,000 units

         17  through vacancy decontrol.  I think it is simply

         18  disingenuous for HPD to come here and tell you that

         19  you should get the real number from DHCR.  You

         20  couldn't get it from DHCR if they wanted to give it

         21  to you.

         22                 We have great respect for the

         23  research staff at DHCR, but they don't have the

         24  numbers.  The reason they don't have the numbers is

         25  landlords are not required to register deregulated
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          2  apartments.  Once an apartment is removed from rent

          3  regulation, whether it's removed the legal way by

          4  getting the legal rent up to 2,000 or whether it's

          5  illegally deregulated, which we don't know how many

          6  there are but we know it happens, the landlord

          7  doesn't have to register anything with DHCR;

          8  therefore, they don't have any numbers that they

          9  could tell you the number.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  But they could

         11  give us the numbers of what they were in 1998 to '99

         12  to 2000, couldn't they?

         13                 MR. MC KEE:  They could tell you how

         14  many apartments have been registered each year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right, how many

         16  rent regulated apartments there are each year.  We

         17  just wouldn't know why they were deregulated.

         18                 MS. KATZ:  But we also wouldn't know

         19  that they weren't still regulated.  Many landlords

         20  neglect to register their buildings in years.  So

         21  you have -- I've looked at these numbers from DHCR,

         22  and they fluctuate from year to year.

         23                 MR. MC KEE:  And DHCR assumes that if

         24  that's the number that registered, that's the number

         25  of regulated units which is absurd.  And you have to
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          2  remember also that the 1997 State law gutted the

          3  rent registration system, and there's basically no

          4  penalty any more for a landlord who doesn't register

          5  his apartments.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We

          7  appreciate you being here.

          8                 MR. MC KEE:  Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         10  Member Brewer?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  We're not

         12  done.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Wait a

         14  minute.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

         16  quick question, Michael.  I'm sorry.

         17                 Representing the west side, of

         18  course, I think we have the largest number of

         19  controlled and stabilized units, and your bill --

         20                 MR. MC KEE:  Your district has the

         21  most.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.  And

         23  the issue that is hurting us most in the whole

         24  community is vacancy decontrol. Picking up on what

         25  Melinda Katz indicated, how do these owners -- I
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          2  think I know the answer, but I wanted it to be clear

          3  so that we can use every bit of ammunition to fight

          4  for the end of vacancy decontrol.  Obviously there

          5  is major capital improvements. What is your

          6  impression as to the ways in which legally or

          7  illegally owners get to that 2,000 or to the

          8  situation where we're at in terms of vacancy

          9  decontrol?

         10                 MR. MC KEE:  Well, there's an easy

         11  illustration and the arithmetic is very easy.

         12  There's a rent stabilized apartment renting for

         13  $1,000 a month.  I choose that because it's a round

         14  number.  The moment that apartment becomes vacant,

         15  the rent goes legally to $1200 a month, probably

         16  more, and that's because of the statutory vacancy

         17  bonus that was put into the law in 1997, which is a

         18  minimum of 20 percent; in some cases it's more, that

         19  brings you up to $1200.  The landlord now says how

         20  much money do I have to spend to get the legal rent

         21  up to 2,000, and as Marty Markowitz put it, "reach

         22  the promised land" the answer is $32,000.  Because

         23  you divide 32,000 by 40, the one fortieth rent

         24  increase for individual apartment approvements, and

         25  that brings you up to $2,000 a month.  It's 800
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          2  added to 1200, 2,000 a month.

          3                 In your neighborhood that means the

          4  apartments can be re- rented for 5,000, 8,000,

          5  $10,000 a month, depending on the building and the

          6  size of the apartment, how much work they do, et

          7  cetera.  In other neighborhoods, like, for example,

          8  in some neighborhoods in the northwest Bronx, we're

          9  seeing those deregulated apartments coming back on

         10  the market at 1100, $1200 a month for one- bedroom

         11  apartments.  They don't even have to re rent them

         12  for $2,000 a month, and, you know, in addition

         13  you've got MCIs, you've got major capital

         14  improvement rent increases, you've got the rent

         15  guidelines themselves, et cetera.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All right.

         17                 Another quick question, and maybe

         18  it's in your material, Barbara Katz.  Is the numbers

         19  of units that are say at that breaking, tipping

         20  point of 1700 and so on, is that in your report?

         21                 MR. MC KEE:  Yeah.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I look

         23  forward to reading it.

         24                 MS. KATZ:  Yeah.  I have the numbers

         25  in here from -- I think it's Table 5.  These are the
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          2   '99 numbers.

          3                 Assuming that any unit that's renting

          4  for 1,000 or more is a candidate for deregulation,

          5  there were -- I'm not adding in my head here -- oh,

          6  about 165,000 units in '99.  Now some of those are

          7  probably already deregulated because I'm sure some

          8  of those are vacated.  There's a turnover rate of

          9  about 10 percent in stabilized and controlled units.

         10    Some homeowners will tell you there's no turnover,

         11  but that's not true.

         12                 So, as you can see, it's a serious

         13  problem, and also there's probably more than that

         14  now because units that rented for less than 1,000 in

         15   '99, many are now renting for more than 1,000.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         17  very much, Madam Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         19  Member Stewart?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 Sir, you mentioned a while ago that

         23  inflation and price index should not be used for

         24  rent increase.

         25                 MR. MC KEE:  Rent adjustments.  The
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          2  law refers to rent adjustments.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Rent

          4  adjustments, all right.

          5                 What method of specific formula would

          6  you want to be used?

          7                 MR. MC KEE:  Our proposal is for the

          8  City Council to enact a law, a local law, that would

          9  end the price index methodology, and would require

         10  landlords to file annual income and expense reports

         11  with the Rent Guidelines Board, as they are now

         12  required to do with the Department of Finance for

         13  Local Law 63, and that that would be the primary

         14  data that the Rent Guidelines Board would look at.

         15  But, I mean, you've got to understand also the Rent

         16  Guidelines Board does an excellent series of other

         17  studies.  They do a study on mortgage interest rates

         18  and availability, they do a study on affordability,

         19  housing supply, et cetera, but the presence of the

         20  price index methodology is an absolute impediment to

         21  a fair and balance approach by the Rent Guidelines

         22  Board.

         23                 You know the Cranes New York last

         24  week referred to this proposal as making it more

         25  difficult for the Rent Guidelines Board to adopt
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          2  rent increases, that's absurd.  The basic

          3  methodology of the Rent Guidelines Board is a vote.

          4  It's a nine member board, appointed by the Mayor.

          5  There are now several vacancies.  The Mayor, as I

          6  understand is getting ready to make some

          7  appointments, and it's whatever five of the nine

          8  members vote for, that's what the rent adjustments

          9  will be.  That would not change by this bill.  The

         10  only thing that would change is what the board looks

         11  at in terms of data.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  But when I

         13  look at your argument based on that a landlord who

         14  is not be making and profit and if you don't look at

         15  the expenses, et cetera, based on that you'd have a

         16  different figure from someone who has been making a

         17  profit, and how are you going to adjust that.

         18  Because one would be making a big profit; the other

         19  one many not be making any profit whatsoever.

         20                 MR. MC KEE:  Yes.  Well,

         21  unfortunately the rent stabilization system and the

         22  rent guidelines system is what's commonly referred

         23  to a rough justice system.

         24                 Yeah.  There are landlords who are

         25  making a lot more than the average, which is
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          2  basically 44- cents on the dollar. Meaning they're

          3  spending 56- cents of every dollar of income running

          4  their buildings, leaving 44- cents for debt service

          5  and profit.  Now that's a pretty good net any way

          6  you slice it.  That means some landlords are doing

          7  even better and some are doing worse.

          8                 We don't have a building- by-

          9  building system where, you know, the agency or

         10  whatever the rent setting agency would be would take

         11  a look at the individual circumstances of an owner.

         12  That would be a much more costly and administrative

         13  cumbersome system, but this is what we've got.  It's

         14  a rough justice system, and we're not talking about

         15  not looking at expenses.  We're talking about

         16  looking at income and expenses, but we're talking

         17  about looking at actual expenses that landlords

         18  incur, not price changes.  That's what the price

         19  index looks at, and that's used as a surrogate for

         20  operating and maintenance costs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         22                 MR. MC KEE:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24  Thank all of you.

         25                 The next speakers are Joseph
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          2  Strasburg and Jack Freund.  Who's first?

          3                 MR. STRASBURG:  I'll do the general

          4  introduction, and then on the technical items like

          5  the PIOC, I have Jack Freund.  I'll be quick as

          6  possible.

          7                 Everyone agrees that we need more

          8  affordable housing in New York City.  How are we

          9  going to ge there?  We've been struggling to find

         10  the answer for more than 60 years.  Some people say

         11  we need more rent controls.  Let's look at the

         12  facts.

         13                 Rent control was established in '43

         14  during the second World War.  It was to be a

         15  temporary wartime emergency measure.  Since then it

         16  has not produced even one affordable housing unit.

         17  It's failed to make existing houses more affordable

         18  and it has limited the housing choices available to

         19  New Yorkers.

         20                 Everyone knows that when more

         21  apartments become available or when demand drops in

         22  a particular neighborhood, rents go down.  Right now

         23  higher- end rents are falling because New York's

         24  recession has reduced demand.  Lack of demand is not

         25  the way we want to reduce rents.  We want rents to
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          2  fall because there is more supply.  Unfortunately,

          3  thanks to the laws now on the books which placed

          4  numerous barriers in the way new construction, most

          5  of the demands for rentals is being met by apartment

          6  construction occurring outside the City limits.

          7  That needs to change.

          8                 The tragedy is not that our loss is

          9  New Jersey's gain.  There's a boom in apartment

         10  construction right now across the river.  One of the

         11  largest builders in New York, a builder who created

         12  tens of thousands of affordable housings in Queens

         13  and Brooklyn, is now building thousands of

         14  apartments on the New Jersey side of the Hudson;

         15  meanwhile, the riverfront of Brooklyn and Queens

         16  remains vacant and desolate.  Trammell Crow

         17  (phonetic) of Atlanta, one of the largest developers

         18  in the nation, is building rentals in Jersey City,

         19  but doesn't own a single building in New York City.

         20  Why?  Because developers in New Jersey aren't

         21  restricted by rent control, and the many outdated

         22  arcane laws and the regulations that make New York

         23  City the single worst place to build in the county.

         24  No city in America has a more hostile environment

         25  for new housing construction than New York City.
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          2                 Mayor Bloomberg recently proposed a

          3  plan to eliminate some of the barriers to housing

          4  production in New York, including the City's

          5  arcadian building codes, outdated zoning

          6  restrictions and bureaucratic approval procedures

          7  for new development.  But let me be blunt, if you

          8  want conditions to change, and if you want the same

          9  availability and choice that our friends in New

         10  Jersey enjoy, our rent laws need to change and

         11  change now.  The few other cities which establish

         12  rent controls during the high inflation of the 1960s

         13  have by now either totally eliminated those

         14  regulations or liberalized them through the addition

         15  of vacancy decontrol.  The City's old- style rent

         16  control laws remain as a unique national symbol of a

         17  failed housing policy.

         18                 New Yorkers deserve the right to find

         19  affordable housing in the neighborhoods they want.

         20  New Yorkers deserve the right to a stable rental

         21  marketplace.  New Yorkers deserve the right to pay

         22  fair rental value and not be penalized just because

         23  they move from one building to another.  The current

         24  rent laws protect none of these fundamental rights,

         25  in fact, these rights are being denied because of
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          2  the current laws.  The limitations of rent control

          3  are being imposed even when they are unjustified.  For

          4  example, the 2002 Housing and Vacancy Survey

          5  demonstrates that the vacancy rate for high rent

          6  apartments exceed five percent.  There is no housing

          7  emergency for this class of housing and it should

          8  not be regulated.

          9                 You have a choice right now between

         10  the failed housing policies of the past and the road

         11  to greater housing availability and affordability in

         12  the future.  You are also being asked to consider

         13  several measures which would take you further into

         14  the past, making the rent laws even more restrictive

         15  and stringent than they are today.  Don't do it.

         16  Developers will never come back to New York if you

         17  want promises not to regulate or deregulate them

         18  repeatedly and renege on those promises.

         19                 New Yorkers need more affordable

         20  housing.  The only way to achieve that goal is to

         21  reform our outdated and destructive rent control

         22  laws, laws that discourage investment in

         23  construction, reduce availability and choice, and

         24  produce higher rents.  This is not the time to

         25  routinely extend rent controls or make them even
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          2  more stringent.  It's time to demonstrate your

          3  political leadership by providing a smooth

          4  transition to a more stable marketplace with more

          5  affordable choices in most neighborhoods.  And New

          6  Yorkers now stand as the only city in this country

          7  to have maintained an uninterrupted rent control

          8  since the end of World War II.  Our antiquated

          9  systems of rent control are now the most restrictive

         10  and bureaucratic of any system in the United States.

         11                 Even when the City's rent control

         12  laws do not restrict economic returns, they conceal

         13  administrative land mines which outside developers

         14  don't understand and won't risk.  Despite a national

         15  housing boom, the rate of new construction in New

         16  York remains at all time lows, raising the rent for

         17  housing which does become available.

         18                 New Yorkers deserve more than a

         19  housing policy that has failed for more than 60

         20  years.  New Yorkers deserve modern --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Joe, I think

         22  you're using Jack's time.

         23                 MR. STRASBURG:  Then I'm finished.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Excuse me.
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          2                 Go ahead, Jack.

          3                 MR. FREUND:  The end of those

          4  comments was towards we need a smooth transition to

          5  the future, a future of greater housing availability

          6  and affordability rather than the systems of the

          7  past.

          8                 But let me just comment briefly on

          9  some of the remarks made by the prior speakers,

         10  particularly with regard to the supposed loss of

         11  housing units through vacancy, high rent decontrol.

         12  Those numbers are largely based on a housing and

         13  vacancy survey.  You've just heard Commissioner

         14  Perine say that the housing and vacancy survey

         15  cannot be used to determine how many units have been

         16  lost to high rent deregulation.  So I think those

         17  numbers are suspect.  They are much higher than any

         18  reasonable estimate.  They are much higher than the

         19  numbers that DHCR has, but really the question is

         20  not how many units have been lost.

         21                 The State Legislature intended for

         22  high rent apartments to come out of the system.  The

         23  question is what has the effect been of the loss of

         24  those housing units, and I would tell you that the

         25  effect has been minimal.  We have just as many rent
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          2  regulated housing units today as we did a decade

          3  ago, uncontrovertible, according to the Housing and

          4  Vacancy Survey. If anything, we have more housing

          5  units.  The Commissioner has just testified that we

          6  have more housing units in the City, including

          7  rental units than at any time in the past.

          8                 Affordability has not been effected

          9  either.  We're still at 38 percent of rent paid to

         10  income.  That number also has not changed over 10

         11  years.  So affordability has not been effected, nor

         12  can we say that rent levels have been affected

         13  because according to the recent survey, the rent

         14  median, stabilized rent is just over $700.  Fully,

         15  three- quarters of all rentals in this City rent for

         16  less than 1,000, and just a mere two percent rent

         17  for over 2,000.  So to call this a high rent town

         18  and unaffordable town, or a town with reduced

         19  housing options is all wrong.

         20                 Let me also briefly comment on

         21  Barbara Elstein's report, which is really

         22  disingenuous and distortive (sic) of the numbers.  I

         23  think the point they want to make is that the

         24  unregulated market does not provide affordable

         25  housing opportunities.  Besides the point that
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          2  affordable is in the eye of the beholder, what

          3  Barbara does in her analysis is take out all of

          4  those units in the private market of less than six

          5  units. That is grossly unfair, that's a great

          6  housing resource that we have throughout the

          7  boroughs, less than six- unit buildings.  Of course,

          8  once you take out those numbers everything changes,

          9  but even so, if we compare the private and the

         10  regulated market again what do we see?  The same

         11  rent- to- income ratio.  Twenty- eight percent

         12  affordability ratio in unregulated just as it is in

         13  regulated.  We see that rents are slightly higher,

         14  yeah, but why?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Will you sum

         16  up, Jack?

         17                 MR. FREUND:  Sure.  It's because

         18  housing conditions are better in the unregulated

         19  market.

         20                 And finally, let me just say that the

         21  same income levels, although incomes in the

         22  unregulated market are higher, the range of incomes

         23  served by both the regulated and unregulated market

         24  is exactly the same.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.
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          2                 I'd just like to introduce Council

          3  Member James Oddo, who is in back of me, and I'm

          4  sorry I keep ignoring you.

          5                 We've also been joined by Council

          6  Member Eva Moskowitz.

          7                 Do we have any questions from the

          8  Committee?

          9                 Council Woman Brewer?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  For Joe

         11  Strasburg, a couple of questions.

         12                 When you say, Jack, minimal impact,

         13  and my question is how is it that the number of

         14  units hasn't changed. Now maybe it's because you are

         15  including when you talk about -- I guess it is rent

         16  regulated.  Is that what you're saying hasn't

         17  changed or is it just rental in general?

         18                 MR. FREUND:  Well, it's both, but I'm

         19  focusing on the rent regulated units because that's

         20  the claim is that we're losing God knows how many

         21  rent- regulated units.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It really

         23  seems that way.

         24                 MR. FREUND:  Well, but it's not that

         25  way, and what I think you have to understand is that
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          2  the housing market is very dynamic.  You've got

          3  housing units coming in and out of that market for

          4  any number of reasons.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Like, are you

          6  including the Section 8, or are you adding J- 51s or

          7  what are we adding that would -- I mean, I just

          8  don't even understand where we're getting new rent

          9  regulated units.

         10                 MR. FREUND:  I'm talking about a very

         11  simple fact, Councilwoman.  And that is that in

         12  1991, there were just over one million units of rent

         13  regulated housing in the City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No, no.  Joe

         15  Strasburg was working in the City Council at that

         16  time.

         17                 MR. FREUND:  That's right, and in

         18  2002 we still have just over one million rent

         19  regulated units.  So how is it possible that we've

         20  lost so many units.  Have we replaced 100,000 units?

         21    I think not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         23                 MR. FREUND:  Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Well, we will

         25  look further at those figures.  In my neighborhood
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          2  on the west side is somewhat relevant to what goes

          3  on in Manhattan, and that's certainly not true.  So

          4  I'm just a little surprised, but we'll look at it.

          5                 And then the other question is, when

          6  you say don't forget about the under six units.

          7  It's my experience that those are not regulated

          8  units, and, in fact, many of them become less than

          9  regulated because of the personal use problem.  So

         10  are you including those are part of your statistics

         11  in terms of regulated units?

         12                 MR. FREUND:  I was merely talking

         13  about the unregulated stock referred to in Barbara

         14  Elstein's report, which excludes those very relevant

         15  units in buildings with less than six units.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  I

         17  mean, some of them are regulated, but not if one

         18  wants to use it as a personal use, but that's always

         19  debateable.

         20                 All right.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         22  Member Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

         24  afternoon, Jack. Good afternoon, sir.

         25                 I asked one of the previous speakers
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          2  a while ago, they made a statement that we should

          3  not use inflation and price index for the rent

          4  adjustment, and I was trying to get a clear cut

          5  method of which should be used instead.  Could you

          6  answer to that?

          7                 MR. STRASBURG:  Okay.  The answer,

          8  one is the generic kind of a comment by me, and I

          9  think Jack Freund will get much more specific as to

         10  because there was a comparison between the proposal

         11  that they said is used outside of New York City that

         12  they want to adopt in New York City.  But let me

         13  just say that the PIOC is the way the statute calls

         14  for, allows the Rent Guidelines Board to have

         15  tremendous flexibility to look at all factors in

         16  determining increases.  There have been times when

         17  we've had double- digit inflation, and clearly the

         18  politics dictated that you could not have the Rent

         19  Guidelines Board impose double- digit increases on

         20  an annual basis.  So clearly the industry received,

         21  you know, single- digit increases.

         22                 At times, clearly the PIOC indicated

         23  that the numbers should be zero or one percent, but

         24  in recognition of the years that the industry lost

         25  money that they would make the necessary corrections
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          2  so that there would be some level of compensation

          3  even in bad years.  And overall in the 30 something

          4  years that this has been in place, really that the

          5  annual fight that we all have in June when we do

          6  these Rent Guidelines Board hearings, and I agree

          7  there's rough justice because many times people --

          8  nobody ever walks away very satisfied.

          9                 Now what is being attempted in terms

         10  of the proposal made by the advocates -- and I'll

         11  allow Jack to get a little more detailed on it --

         12  basically would limit and make the fact that

         13  zero/zero may very well be a possibility in terms of

         14  increases in New York City, even with increased fuel

         15  costs and insurance costs.

         16                 So I'll ask you to just talk about

         17  the policy.

         18                 MR. FREUND:  Sure.  And, Councilman,

         19  I think you raised a relevant question before which

         20  Mike McKee didn't answer, and that is what happens

         21  then when an owner doesn't have any profit, and all

         22  you're looking at is profit, and that's your only

         23  gauge for rent guidelines.  What happens to that

         24  owner when -- how does that get factored in?  And I

         25  think what happens is it gets factored in and owners
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          2  in general then don't get the rent increase they

          3  should get because there are some profitable

          4  buildings out there.

          5                 So the price index over the years has

          6  provided a much more reliable index of costs, and it

          7  is not just the price index as Mike McKee would have

          8  you believe, it has transformed in the 30 years,

          9  more than 30 years that it's been used to become a

         10  hybrid instrument.  It measures costs in some cases,

         11  it measures prices in other cases.  Altogether it is

         12  the only mechanism, and particularly now in a time

         13  when we're facing budgetary pressures, when you need

         14  real estate taxes, a price index is going to tell

         15  you quite clearly that there's been a 18 percent

         16  increase in real estate tax costs.  The income and

         17  expense data is not necessarily going to tell you

         18  that.

         19                 So we believe you should provide the

         20  Rent Guidelines Board with all possible sources of

         21  information, including the income and expense

         22  information that they get now, and they use now, as

         23  well as the price index, which they get now and use

         24  now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  On another
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          2  topic, Mr. Strasburg.  You mention that since --

          3  what is it, since 1964 there has not been any major

          4  building in the City of New York, and you said right

          5  now we're having quite a boom across the river.

          6                 MR. STRASBURG:  That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Could you

          8  just go over again the specific reasons why builders

          9  and developers are not really building in New York

         10  City?  Could you go over that again please?

         11                 MR. STRASBURG:  I think the greatest

         12  concern by most developers, given a choice of taking

         13  a risk and developing housing is clearly you're

         14  going to go to a place that's less restrictive

         15  governmentally than you would in any other place.

         16  New York has always been a great place to develop

         17  housing.  The problem with government and the

         18  history of government is they've made promises over

         19  the last 30 years and said, if you build, we won't

         20  re- regulate those apartments.  And by example is

         21  that rent control only applied to pre- 1969 units,

         22  as we remember.  When developers started building --

         23  that's how Queens got developed. Then the outcry by

         24  the tenants was, the rents are high, and government

         25  stepped in, in 1969 and all of a sudden created rent
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          2  stabilization that covered all those units that had

          3  been developed.  Then there was the developers were

          4  chased off, and they said, well, you know,

          5  government made a promise and they broke it.

          6                 Then in the early 1980s when there

          7  was no development going on, government brought in

          8  all the developers and said, listen, we'll create a

          9  Program 421.  You build.  There will be rent

         10  regulation on those units, and in 10 years they will

         11  be phased out and then you can go to free market.

         12  Well, when they built it -- I'm sorry, it was in the

         13   '70s.  '74 to '84 when those units were about to

         14  become decontrolled then there was another outcry,

         15  basically out of Manhattan, and they went to Albany,

         16  and Albany found a very nice way of making sure that

         17  those apartments become vacant based on the fact

         18  that the tax abatement ran out, and so they made it

         19  very clear that owners had to provide large bold

         20  notice to perspective tenants, et cetera, et cetera.

         21                 Now we had in 1997, where we had the

         22  Rent Regulation Reform Act, the fight in 1997 where

         23  everyone stood up, and they agreed this was the

         24  deal, and in there it was clear that the whole

         25  purpose of the 2000- dollar number was to decontrol
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          2  as many units as possible, using whatever method you

          3  could get there.

          4                 Now there is a proposal in Albany

          5  again by the Assembly, to start re- regulating those

          6  units.  So the kind of message you are sending to

          7  developers is, you know what, we can make an

          8  agreement with government but it's only going to be

          9  temporary.  So they will have a choice, if given the

         10  choice between two different states, where in many

         11  states there is a constitutional prohibition to have

         12  rent regulation imposed, they're going to go there.

         13                 Now the only way you can build in New

         14  York, we all understand is if you don't have any tax

         15  programs, you're never going to be able to afford to

         16  build.  And as part of the condition as well in

         17  terms of building in this City is you must agree

         18  that while you are receiving these tax benefits for

         19  new construction, you must place your units under

         20  rent stabilization. If you're looking to do rehab,

         21  if you accept J51 as a condition to do rehab, you

         22  must place those units under rent regulation for

         23  whatever period of time.  Again, in other states you

         24  don't have those kind of conditions, and they will

         25  do a risk analysis and say you know what, we're
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          2  going to go somewhere else where we don't have to

          3  worry about government breaking their promise.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  The last

          5  question, the 421.  We have just renewed that and

          6  increased it to what 32, 33 years, I think it is, or

          7  34 years.  Is that going to make a --

          8                 MR. STRASBURG:  J51, you mean, right?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No, and 421.

         10    Would that help in any way to the construction to

         11  new, affordable homes?

         12                 MR. STRASBURG:  Well, that's going to

         13  be a factor of -- based on the economy that is

         14  existing now in New York City you're going to see

         15  developers probably not be as active as they were in

         16  the hey day of, you know, two, three years ago

         17  because the 80/20 proposal, which in my opinion is

         18  one of the new vehicles to create affordable housing

         19  in the City of New York, is they're going to have to

         20  determine what their fair market rentals are going

         21  to be because they have a bottom line, and they'll

         22  make a determination based on the economics of

         23  whether they're going to go ahead, even with tax

         24  abatements to build.  I don't think you see too many

         25  80/20 programs outside of Manhattan because the
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          2  ability to have fair market to subsidize the lower

          3  end is just not there.  So my belief is that for the

          4  next two years you're going to see a dramatic

          5  slowdown of 80/20s being developed in the Manhattan.

          6                 Now J51 clearly, you know, I've

          7  watched it evolve in the last 30 years, is one of

          8  the few mechanisms available to homeowners, small

          9  homeowners, and I say brownstones, as well as large

         10  in order to rehab their building.  And I think there

         11  you're going to see people continuing being in the

         12  program as you have extended it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         14                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         15                 MR. STRASBURG:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   Thank you.

         17                 Thank you.  Councilwoman Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 I just wanted to ask a question

         21  referring to your comment as far as a million units

         22  having been counted as far as regulations are

         23  concerned -- regulated units in '91.  And then you

         24  made a comment that we still have a million units

         25  regulated in 2000.
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          2                 MR. FREUND:  That's right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  How is it that

          4  we have a million regulated units if in '97

          5  landlords were not forced to regulate or register

          6  their buildings?

          7                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah, I missed the last

          8  part.  If in '97 what?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  If the '97 law

         10   --

         11                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah, allowed them to

         12  take units out.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- Allowed them

         14  not to have to register their buildings, how is it

         15  that we have the same number of?

         16                 MR. FREUND:  Well, I think it's

         17  obvious that they are registering their buildings.

         18  Okay?  I mean, that's why you have the same number.

         19                 The short answer is that owners do

         20  register their buildings, despite what Mike McKee

         21  says, there are serious consequences by not

         22  registering.  There may be variations, there may be

         23  drop offs, but the bottom line in all this is that

         24  we have had the same basic housing stock in New York

         25  for at least a decade, and that there has not been a
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          2  loss of housing units, nor has there been a loss of

          3  affordability, that those conditions have remained

          4  essentially static over the last decade.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any other

          7  questions?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Madam Chair.

          9    Good afternoon.

         10                 And you're saying that there are

         11  penalties, and Mike McKee said there isn't.  Well,

         12  wait a minute, somebody has their facts wrong.  You

         13  agree?  Would you agree with that?

         14                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah.  I'd agree that

         15  I'm right and he's wrong.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, no, I

         17  didn't ask you that.  I asked you, you're stating

         18  one thing, and Mike McKee is stating something else.

         19                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And extreme

         21  opposite.  One of you, either you or Mike McKee is

         22  wrong.  Is that correct?

         23                 MR. FREUND:  Well, let me clarify it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that

         25  correct?  I just want to -- I'm just trying to draw
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          2  a conclusion whether or not I'm right in my

          3  assessment.

          4                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah.  I'm trying to

          5  lead you in the right direction there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So

          7  the answer is yes?

          8                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And then

         10  you're going to explain something, but I want to

         11  hear what the answer is first.

         12                 MR. FREUND:  Yes.  I think Mike McKee

         13  is wrong in misleading you into thinking that owners

         14   --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, then

         16  explain how.

         17                 MR. FREUND:  -- Are not registering

         18  their units; there are no penalties for not

         19  registering.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Then let me

         21  ask you another question.

         22                 You are saying there are penalties.

         23  Is that correct?

         24                 MR. FREUND:  There are, absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Then
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          2  please explain to me what penalties are there and

          3  based on what section of the law, if you know?

          4                 MR. FREUND:  There are rent, the same

          5  rent overcharges are there, the same penalties for

          6  rent overcharge and failure to register rents with

          7  treble damages there as there were before.  I think

          8  what Mike is referring to is the four- year statute

          9  of limitations which has changed, and justifiably,

         10  because under the previous rules you were supposed

         11  to maintain records indefinitely.  You know, don't

         12  forget we've had rent registration now since 1984,

         13  and owners are required perennially to maintain

         14  those records even through changes of ownership of

         15  buildings and so on.  What the Legislature, in its

         16  wisdom, I think, correctly did was say, there's a

         17  limit, which was in the initial law that there's a

         18  limit of a four- year record keeping limitation.

         19  That's not to say you have carte blanche not to

         20  register your units.  It's just that you don't have

         21  to keep the records of those registrations forever,

         22  and I think that's what Mike is pointing to.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So you're

         24  trying to -- that you think that that's what Mike

         25  meant to say, because I'm going to ask Mike.
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          2                 MR. FREUND:  Yeah.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You know

          4  that, right?

          5                 MR. FREUND:  I know that that's what

          6  he was talking about and trying to put his spin on

          7  it, let's put it that way.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Now

          9  you're saying that in response to Council Member

         10  Diana Reyna's question as far as the number of

         11  units, you basically said that people are

         12  registering their units, the owners, that's why the

         13  numbers are still the same.  To me that didn't make

         14  sense to me, let me tell you why.  Because to the

         15  best of my knowledge, construction of housing units

         16  throughout New York City have gone up all over the

         17  place, and so in my assessment as a lay person --

         18  and you're an expert in this field and I'm not -- it

         19  would appear as though the number of units should go

         20  up rather than stay the same.  Doesn't that make

         21  sense?

         22                 MR. FREUND:  Well, it does, but I

         23  think you're right in a sense.  I mean, there has

         24  been construction.  Well, let me point out one that

         25  the level of construction is relatively low.  We're
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          2  producing less than 10,000 units of housing a year,

          3  as opposed to in its hey- day New York was able to

          4  produce 100,000 units a year.  So the relative level

          5  of construction -- what we'd like to see in terms of

          6  construction is not there.  It's been relatively

          7  strong, you know, relative is a relative word, but I

          8  think the other part of the picture is as I said,

          9  housing is a very dynamic situation.  Units fall out

         10  of the market for various reasons just as they

         11  enter.  At the same time there are new units coming

         12  in, newly constructed units, units being gut rehab,

         13  City owned units coming on line; units are also

         14  going off line through age, through fires, through

         15  the deterioration, through demolition --

         16                 MR. STRASBURG:  Through co- oping.

         17                 MR. FREUND:  -- Through co- oping.

         18  You've got all sorts of dynamics happening in the

         19  market, and what I'm talking about is simply the net

         20  effect of all those ins and outs is a fairly static

         21  rent regulated housing market.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Do

         23  you think that the enforcement of making sure that

         24  landlords register their apartments, do you think

         25  that is being enforced by the appropriate housing,
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          2  whoever enforces it?

          3                 MR. FREUND:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You think

          5  so?

          6                 MR. FREUND:  Yes, I do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And which

          8  oversight unit handles that?

          9                 MR. FREUND:  Well, that's governed by

         10   -- it's administered by the State Division of

         11  Housing and Community Renewal

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

         13  Okay.  And you believe that that is being enforced

         14  to ensure compliance?

         15                 MR. FREUND:  Oh, yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Stewart?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I just want

         21  to be clear on a point about new construction.

         22                 Within the past five years the new

         23  construction that a private developer may develop,

         24  are those apartments regulated?

         25                 MR. STRASBURG:  The question is, are
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          2  they receiving tax abatements?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No, if

          4  they're not receiving any tax abatement.

          5                 MR. STRASBURG:  If they're not

          6  receiving any tax abatements whatsoever, then

          7  they're free market and theoretically charging what

          8  the market will bear.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  So

         10  what you're saying, in essence, is that we can have

         11  construction going on, and these increased

         12  apartments doesn't necessarily mean it will be

         13  counted within the regulated apartments.

         14                 MR. STRASBURG:  Well, you can also

         15  have new construction that are not for rental

         16  purposes, but are being developed purely for condos,

         17  condominiums or co- ops, and those are not going to

         18  be counted for purposes of rent regulation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         20

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22  Thank you, gentlemen.

         23                 MR. STRASBURG:  Okay.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  The next

         25  speakers are John Marsh, Thomas Siracuse, and Edrey
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          2  Cote.

          3                 Since you are already seated would

          4  you like to identify yourself and start?

          5                 MR. MARSH:  Yes.  Thank you.  My name

          6  is John Marsh.  I'm a member of the Board of the

          7  Sturvesant Town- Peter Cooper Village Tenants

          8  Association, and a lifelong resident of the

          9  community it serves.

         10                 Our organization is advocate for more

         11  than 20,000 tenants in the largest rent regulated

         12  community in New York.  I'm grateful for the

         13  opportunity to testify before this Committee on one

         14  of the most important issues facing our City, the

         15  preservation of affordable housing through

         16  strengthened and continued rent protections.  The

         17  intro and resolutions you are considering are

         18  critical to the fight to save the homes of more than

         19  two million New Yorkers, and return to the City the

         20  authority to exercise home rule over its housing and

         21  land use.

         22                 Our tenants association urges this

         23  Committee and the City Council to communicate to the

         24  State Legislature in the strongest possible language

         25  that these measures are absolutely necessary for the
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          2  social and economic recovery of this City. Rent

          3  regulated housing is the only source of affordable

          4  housing in this City for police, fire fighters,

          5  teachers, nurses, medical technicians, and countless

          6  other indispensable workers.  Without the affordable

          7  housing that rent regulations guarantee, no plan for

          8  the economic recovery of this City can succeed.

          9                 Vacancy and high rent decontrol have

         10  had an extremely corrosive effect on affordable

         11  housing in New York City, and as stipulated in

         12  Resolution 692, have resulted in the loss of nearly

         13  100,000 units of affordable housing in the past

         14  decade.  The Urstadt Law makes this loss permanent

         15  and prohibits the City from taking direct action to

         16  reserve the decline.

         17                 The mere extension of current laws

         18  would, in fact, be deregulation by attrition.

         19  Unless protections are strengthened and made

         20  permanent, complete deregulation of housing in New

         21  York will be slowed by only a few years.

         22                 In my own community, the rush by our

         23  landlord, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, to

         24  take advantage of vacancy decontrol is destroying

         25  the very fabric and quality of life in one of New
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          2  York's most sought after family- oriented, moderate

          3  income neighborhoods.  Already as many as 20 percent

          4  of Stuyvesant Town- Peter Cooper Village apartments

          5  have been lost to vacancy decontrol, and it's not

          6  just destabilizing rents, it's destabilizing strong

          7  communities like my own.

          8                 Opponents of rent regulation argue

          9  that supply and demand should govern prices, but

         10  half of all households now living in New York rent

         11  regulated housing earn less than $25,000 per year.

         12  Current market rentals are two to three times what

         13  protected tenants pay.  In a city with the country's

         14  most limited supply of rental housing and an

         15  unlimited demand for it, virtually every rent

         16  regulated household will face a huge rent increase

         17  in the event of decontrol.  Few current tenants

         18  under rent regulation could afford such a sudden

         19  increase in the cost of housing.  Some will find

         20  alternative housing in outer boroughs, many more

         21  will be forced to leave New York altogether to try

         22  to build new lives in nearby suburbs or distant

         23  cities. Some will have no options and be forced to

         24  turn to the City for assistance, but how many?  One

         25  hundred thousand, 200,000, half a million?

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

          3  please sum up?

          4                 MR. MARSH:  These are not

          5  exaggerations but real possibilities.

          6                 And one of the most vulnerable among

          7  us, seniors on fixed incomes?  They have the most to

          8  lose.  Their fixed incomes make it just as difficult

          9  for them to pack up and move as it does for them to

         10  afford steep rent increases.  For them, as for the

         11  majority of the 20,000 neighbors, strengthening and

         12  renewing rent- regulations isn't a convenience; it's

         13  a means of survival.

         14                 Thank you, Madam Chairperson and

         15  members of the Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         17                 Next?  Please identify yourself,

         18  which one of you.

         19                 MS. COTE:  Okay.  I'm Edrie Cote.  My

         20  name is Edrie Cote.  I'm a rent stabilized tenant,

         21  who has lived in New York City for over 40 years.

         22                 Since the early '90s I have been

         23  involved in the leadership of the London Terrace

         24  Gardens Tenants Association. Time and again, the

         25  importance of the rent laws in protecting tenants
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          2  rights have come to light.

          3                 When my husband and I moved to

          4  Manhattan's London Terrace in 1977, we did not

          5  anticipate we would spend the next 25 years there,

          6  but we have, in part because the laws require

          7  landlord offer lease renewals.  Abolishing that

          8  regulation alone would have a destabilizing effect

          9  on the whole City by discouraging tenants from

         10  setting down roots.  Even with legal limitations on

         11  lease renewal rent increases, we have seen many

         12  tenants priced out of their homes and neighborhood.

         13  If the laws are not renewed, my husband and I will

         14  likely face the same situation, along with countless

         15  others.

         16                 Landlords have the upper hand in

         17  landlord/tenant relations, but rent laws level the

         18  playing field at least somewhat, by establishing

         19  ground rules and grievance procedures that would

         20  vanish if the laws were not renewed.  Virtually

         21  every London Terrace Gardens Apartment that has been

         22  vacated since vacancy decontrol was enacted or every

         23  London Terrace Gardens Apartment that has been

         24  vacated since vacancy decontrol was enacted has been

         25  decontrolled.  Once an affordable housing complex,

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  it is rapidly becoming an exclusive, high rent

          3  community.  There was every indication that the

          4  owners found these 10 buildings to be very

          5  profitable before the decontrol revision, now they

          6  must be very pleased indeed.

          7                 It is vital that vacancy decontrol be

          8  repealed to preserve affordable housing.  High rent,

          9  high income decontrol has caused many tenants to be

         10  ousted from their homes by default, after missing

         11  one of the myriad filing deadlines they must face

         12  each year.  Landlords are not required to open their

         13  books, why should tenants be.  The true effect of

         14  means testing is to divide and thus defeat tenants

         15  as a group.

         16                 Rent controlled tenants have been hit

         17  recently with annual increases in excess of 10

         18  percent, plus significant fuel, and in some cases

         19  electricity adjustments.  Most rent controlled

         20  tenants are elderly and scrape to get by on fixed

         21  incomes.  Formulas for determining rent control

         22  increases must be revised to protect this vulnerable

         23  group of tenants from usurious increases, way out of

         24  line with inflation.

         25                 A math teacher and a computer
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          2  programmer, we have been middle- income tax payers,

          3  living modestly in a one- bedroom Manhattan

          4  apartment.  We wish to spend our retirement years

          5  living in New York, but that may not be an option if

          6  the rent laws are not renewed and strengthened.

          7                 We urge the City Council to pass

          8  Intro. 367, to extend rent stabilization; Resolution

          9  690, to extend rent control; Resolution 691, asking

         10  for repeal of the Urstadt Law; and Resolution 692.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Sir?

         13                 MR. SIRACUSE:  My name is Tom

         14  Siracuse.

         15                 The Committee to Protect Rent

         16  Controlled Tenants represents a group of tenants

         17  often forgotten when the rent laws are renewed or

         18  reformed.  Rent controlled tenants, of which there

         19  are only about 50,000 left, are facing a crisis.

         20  Over the years they have been hit by escalating

         21  increases while their incomes have hardly increased

         22  at all.  If these increases are allowed to continue,

         23  many elderly tenants will be priced out of home

         24  where they have lived for over 32 years.  The City

         25  and State Government cannot allow this disaster to
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          2  take place.

          3                 The DHCR, which determines rent

          4  controlled increases, ordered a 10- and- a- half

          5  percent increase on the maximum base rent for

          6  2002/2003, this despite low inflation rates.  Most

          7  controlled tenants are quite elderly and are on low

          8  or fixed incomes.  On average, controlled rents

          9  constitute more than 33 percent of tenants' income,

         10  and yet the Social Security increase for 2003 was

         11  only 1.4 percent.  Over a quarter of controlled

         12  tenants are eligible for the senior citizen rent

         13  increase exception.  Most of the rest have incomes

         14  of not much more than the SCRIE income limit.  Rent

         15  controlled apartments are not only subject to the

         16  10- and- a- half percent MBR increase, but are also

         17  subject to MCI, labor, and fuel surcharges which are

         18  added to the MBR.  Some tenants are facing increases

         19  of 20 percent.  Gone are the days when apartments

         20  often rented for less than $500 a month.  Now many

         21  rent controlled apartments rent for $1,000 a month.

         22                 It's not enough just to renew the

         23  laws.  Under the present laws so- called controlled

         24  rents double every eight years. Assembly Bill A02716

         25  does not address this problem.  The Council must

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  eliminate MCI, labor, utility, and fuel surcharges

          3  for rent controlled tenants.  These costs are

          4  already figured into the components which make up

          5  the MBR increases.  Using double charges results in

          6  higher increases for rent controlled tenant, and the

          7  MBR formula must be revised.

          8                 Also, the limit for SCRIE should be

          9  increased to $30,000 a year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Tom, will

         11  you please sum up?

         12                 MR. SIRACUSE:  All right.

         13                 And the program should be extended to

         14  those with disabilities.

         15                 The elimination of surcharges and the

         16  increase of the SCRIE income limit would go a long

         17  way to enable rent controlled tenants to stay in

         18  their homes.  Placing rent control under rent

         19  stabilization will not solve the problem.  Rent

         20  controlled tenants simply cannot afford the expected

         21  high increases projected for the Rent Guidelines

         22  Board.  If these reforms are not enacted, a

         23  moratorium on rent controlled rents should be

         24  declared.  Unless the Council acts now, we will see

         25  thousands of elderly tenants forced to uproot their
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          2  lives and leave New York.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. SIRACUSE:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have any

          6  questions?

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 Dan Margulies, Nicholas LaPorte,

          9  Marolyn Davenport.

         10                 Okay.  Please decide who goes first

         11  and introduce yourself.

         12                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Okay.  Good

         13  afternoon.  I'm Marolyn Davenport.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good, we'll

         15  let the lady go first.

         16                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I'm Marolyn Davenport

         17  from the Real Estate Board of New York, a trade

         18  association of over 5,000 owners, builders, brokers,

         19  and managers of high rise property.

         20                 REBNY opposes the extension of rent

         21  regulations. Sixty years of rent regulations have

         22  perpetuated our housing shortage.  They impeded the

         23  growth of inadequate housing stock and discourage

         24  investment in rental housing.  Rent regulations were

         25  put into place to conserve construction materials
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          2  for the war effort.  Now they serve to protect a

          3  lucky few with great deals on Manhattan apartments.

          4  They have virtually no impact in the boroughs where,

          5  if anything, they push rents up somewhat. Rent

          6  regulations have nothing to do with fairness; nor do

          7  they protect the poor.

          8                 Rent regulations discourage mobility

          9  by tenants, that is absolutely essential to

         10  maintaining a vital housing market.  Tenants with

         11  great deals on Manhattan apartments simply stay put.

         12    They may buy a house in the Hamptons or elsewhere,

         13  but they don't give up their regulated apartment;

         14  they pass them on to their children.  Where else in

         15  the country do family members have succession rights

         16  to an apartment?  Or where else in the country is a

         17  rental apartment an asset to be divided by the

         18  tenants in a divorce settlement?

         19                 Rent regulations do not maintain

         20  affordable housing, in fact, they increase the rents

         21  in top market areas in Manhattan, and have no impact

         22  in the boroughs.  In fact, rents in Brooklyn, Queens

         23  and the Bronx are often significantly below the

         24  regulated rent.  In Manhattan, however, they

         25  increase rents by stifling the mobility that would
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          2  free up more units.

          3                 New York City indeed has a housing

          4  shortage, but the solution to it is to build more

          5  housing, not to stifle the marketplace with

          6  burdensome regulations.  Sixty years of regulating

          7  rents has proved that this is not the solution to

          8  the supply problem.  Only new production and

          9  measures that encourage investment in housing, such

         10  as improved zoning laws and an updated building

         11  code, will solve the shortage.

         12                 As The New York Times has noted, the

         13  laws create an irrational system in which some well-

         14  to- do tenants pay very little rent for large

         15  apartments, while less prosperous newcomers are

         16  forced to pay higher rents as a result of the

         17  shortage. Regulations discourage investment and the

         18  upgrading or properties as well as new construction.

         19    They hurt the entire City by reducing the tax

         20  base, which is particularly problematic right now.

         21                 We are also opposed to the resolution

         22  to repeal the Urstadt Law.  Heaven help the City

         23  Council if the State did repeal it.  High rent

         24  vacancy decontrol has resulted in substantially

         25  increased capital investment in upgrading and
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          2  preserving our aging housing stock.  And there's a

          3  recent housing supply study that is out that showed

          4  that something like 66 percent of the housing in New

          5  York City is over 50 years old. So, you know, I'd

          6  think twice before I'd take away incentives to

          7  improve it.

          8                 High rent vacancy decontrol has no

          9  impact on tenants in place, and over time will help

         10  to restore some balance in our terribly skewed two-

         11  tiered housing market.  What is the rationale for,

         12  for regulating high rent apartments?  There's no

         13  justification for it, and we hope you don't disturb

         14  it.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         17                 Who's next?

         18                 MR. LA PORTE:  My name is Nicholas

         19  LaPorte.  I'm the Executive Director of Associated

         20  Builders and Owners of Greater New York.  We

         21  represent about 1,000 building owners, managers, and

         22  developers and builders themselves.

         23                 I didn't prepare a statement today.

         24  I came really for initially just to listen, but I

         25  felt compelled to speak after hearing some of the
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          2  testimony.

          3                 I've been before this Committee and

          4  other committees of the Council on regulatory issues

          5  that were before you concerning the real estate

          6  industry, and I will only repeat what I've said

          7  before at those hearings in terms of how we, as an

          8  industry are probably the most over regulated

          9  industry in this country, short of perhaps the

         10  banking industry.

         11                 And people come here and they

         12  complain about how landlords aren't upkeeping their

         13  properties, and how they're not getting their fair

         14  value for the rent that they're paying, and they

         15  continually complain about the conditions of

         16  residential properties in the City and commercial as

         17  well, I'm sure if they were going to talk about

         18  those as well.

         19                 And then when efforts are made to

         20  improve those properties and the costs for those

         21  improvements are passed on, people complain about

         22  that.  Then they complain about coming off of tax

         23  abatement programs after a builder or developer has

         24  contracted with the government to do that, to have

         25  just that kind of an arrangement there for 10 years,
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          2  or 15 years, or 30 years, whatever it under

          3  Mitchell- Lama.  They have the right to come out of

          4  rent regulation, and then people complain that

          5  that's not fair.  Well, what's fair, I would like a

          6  definition of what is fair because it seems to me

          7  that what is fair, is only fair to make the life of

          8  tenants fair.

          9                 Nobody pays attention to the costs or

         10  the impact of owners and builders of properties in

         11  the City.

         12                 Mr. Strasburg before articulated how

         13  difficult it is to find new construction in the

         14  City, how everything is going across the river.

         15  Well, he's absolutely right.  He represents owners;

         16  I represent builders.  I can tell you for a fact

         17  that my members are looking more and more to New

         18  Jersey because the building code is easier to deal

         19  with.  They don't have to worry about being black-

         20  jacked by state or local government on rent

         21  regulations or any kind of program that is going to

         22  impact on their ability to make money on their

         23  properties.

         24                 When we come into this City to build,

         25  we have to consider a myriad of things, and the only

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  reason why you see new construction in this City is

          3  because -- and the only way it can be done is

          4  because the State government or the local government

          5  provides tax incentives, and we are willing to come

          6  in and build under those conditions, but when those

          7  tax programs are over, we expect to walk away from

          8  rent regulation.

          9                 Again, I didn't prepare any

         10  statement, but I just want to give one antidotal

         11  experience that I have to kind of sum up the

         12  relative fairness or unfairness of rent regulation

         13  generally.

         14                 When I used to work for this body.  I

         15  was the Director of the Construction Division of the

         16  City Council, and we dealt with a project in

         17  Rockaway called Dayton Seaside.  And one of the

         18  programs that we were dealing with was the tax

         19  abatement program that somehow slipped through the

         20  cracks for them in the early '80s.

         21                 In dealing with the management of

         22  Dayton Seaside on the myriad of issues one of the

         23  things that came up was a need to put forward a rent

         24  increase because of major capital improvements that

         25  were made at the building, which were clearly
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          2  needed.

          3                 When the time came for the rent

          4  increases, when they were approved by the State, and

          5  the rent increases were imposed, notices went out to

          6  tenants saying that the rent, effective January 1st

          7  of whatever year that it was, that your rent is

          8  going to go up by x numbers of dollars, and it

          9  caused an uproar for two reasons.

         10                 One, is because there was a rent

         11  increase, and the second was because people were

         12  leaving for Florida is six months, and they had to

         13  pay their rent in advance, and they were upset they

         14  had to pay the increased rent six months in advance.

         15                 The absurdity of that situation more

         16  than anything else that I've come across attest to

         17  the need to have rent deregulation, and that to me

         18  was the most absurd example of people complaining in

         19  rent regulated apartments that they didn't want to

         20  pay their rent increase and they didn't want to pay

         21  it six months in advance because they didn't want to

         22  put that much money out while they were down in

         23  Florida in their summer homes.

         24                 I have nothing else.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.
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          2                 Next.

          3                 MR. MARGULIES:  Thank you for the

          4  opportunity to testify.  My name is Dan Margulies.

          5  I'm the Executive Director of Community Housing

          6  Improvement Program, a trade association

          7  representing about 2500 owners of rent stabilized

          8  and rent controlled building.

          9                 I'm joined by Andrew Hoffman the

         10  President of CHIP.

         11                 We oppose all the measures before the

         12  committee.

         13                 First and foremost, of course, we

         14  believe the proposed extension of rent regulations

         15  is a mistake.  The justification for local adoption

         16  of rent regulations is supposedly an emergency

         17  created by a rental vacancy rate under five percent.

         18                 I say supposedly, because no where in

         19  the legislative history can I find any authority or

         20  justification for the five- percent number.  It was

         21  apparently pulled out of the air 60 years ago on the

         22  assumption that New York's vacancy rate would never

         23  be that high.

         24                 If there's anything this Council

         25  should understand about housing, it is that there is
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          2  no single housing market that is identical across

          3  all your districts.  You all represent different

          4  places.  The recent Housing Vacancy Survey

          5  statistics, released by the Department of Housing

          6  Preservation and Development show a 9.25 percent

          7  vacancy rate for apartments renting for more than

          8  $1750 a month.  There are several Council districts

          9  I know where a 1750- dollar a month rent is rare, in

         10  fact, the median rent for a rent stabilized unit

         11  citywide was $703 in 2002, as opposed to $850 for

         12  unregulated units citywide.

         13                 There are two important points to

         14  note about these numbers.  First, despite all the

         15  cries about skyrocketing rents, about the decontrol

         16  of vacant apartment renting for more than $2,000,

         17  the median unregulated rent is still just $850.

         18  Proof that the market does work to match supply and

         19  demand.

         20                 Owners can't and won't charge more

         21  than their customers can afford, and district by

         22  district around the City that differs.  Second, the

         23  difference between regulated and unregulated rents

         24  citywide masks a real tale of two cities.

         25                 As the HVS showed in 1999 and the new
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          2  study will confirm, regulated and unregulated rents

          3  outside the Manhattan core are virtually the same.

          4  The big difference is in Manhattan below 96th Street

          5  and to so- called benefits of rent regulation are

          6  primarily enjoyed by those lucky enough to have won

          7  the midtown apartment lottery.

          8                 Rent regulation is doing nothing to

          9  promote affordability in poor neighborhoods.  Rent

         10  regulation is hurting the poor and middle class of

         11  the City, however, because it is depressing property

         12  values.  The difference between regulated and

         13  unregulated rents in core Manhattan is costing the

         14  City billions of dollars in assessments, and

         15  hundreds of millions annually in lost property tax

         16  revenues that could be used for education and real

         17  housing programs for people who need assistance.  As

         18  I'm sure you know, more than 18 cents of every rent

         19  dollar goes to the City for taxes, water, and sewer

         20  charges.

         21                 In sum, the City's continuation of

         22  rent regulations is not helping people who need

         23  housing, and is costing hundreds of millions of

         24  dollars is misdirected subsidies to wealthier New

         25  Yorkers.  Sixty years of controls have not solved
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          2  the City's housing problems.  It's time to try what

          3  most other cities have done and let the market work.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. MARGULIES:  Mr. Hoffman would

          7  just like to add 30 seconds on.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thirty

          9  seconds.

         10                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Thank you.

         11                 Sometimes I think the City Council

         12  operates in a vacuum.  I have a 80- unit --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Would you

         14  please say your name for the record?

         15                 MR. HOFFMAN:  My name is Andrew

         16  Hoffman.  I'm the President of the Community Housing

         17  Improvement Program.

         18                 I have a building in core Manhattan,

         19  an 80- unit building, where the assessed evaluation

         20  is 2.8 million dollars. My taxes were $350,000 a

         21  year for that building.  Divided out, that equates

         22  to approximately 300 to $310 a month per apartment.

         23  Recently the City Council enacted real estate tax

         24  increases of 18.5 percent.  For these units that

         25  equated to about 55 to $60 per month, per apartment.
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          2    Last year I got rent guidelines increases of three

          3  percent a year.  The median rent in that building in

          4  core Manhattan is $1,000 a month per apartment.  So

          5  I got $30 rent increase and my real estate tax bill

          6  is going up $55, and that's effective January 1st.

          7                 The tentative assessments just came

          8  out, and that $55 will increase to about $65 if the

          9  rate stays the same. There's no way for me to

         10  recover that.  The Rent Guidelines Board won't give

         11  me that increase, and I think it's important for the

         12  City Council to hear those numbers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         14  any questions?

         15                 Councilwoman Reyna?

         16                 COUNCIL WOMAN REYNA:  I really want

         17  to ask for an honest answer as to how or what is the

         18  solution to this problem, as far as affordable

         19  housing for every New Yorker in New York State.

         20  Because I sit and listen to your testimonies, and

         21  I'm not just listening to the tenants, I'm listening

         22  to the associations that come here representing

         23  everyone in the industry from real estate, to

         24  builders, to developers, and I don't understand

         25  exactly how everyone can meet in the middle to
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          2  provide adequate housing for everyone.  I believe

          3  that poverty is concentrated.  I live in poverty.  I

          4  live amongst families that are struggling on a daily

          5  basis.  How do I go back and tell them you deserve

          6  just as much as Manhattan does in luxury housing,

          7  you deserve adequate housing conditions, and you

          8  deserve it at a rate that you can afford it?  How do

          9  we match that?

         10                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I think you have a

         11  very good question, and the answer is that we have

         12  to provide more housing. Rent regulations aren't

         13  helping your district.  Chances are that the

         14  regulated, the allowable rents are higher than the

         15  rents that are charged because the market won't bear

         16  them.  What you need in your district is more

         17  housing, and that means that it's a combination of

         18  subsidy, because housing construction costs are very

         19  high.  It's a combination of subsidy, it's a

         20  combination of zoning reform, and we need building

         21  code reform to make it simpler and less expensive to

         22  build that housing, and we need governmental

         23  regulation, regulatory reform so that the plans can

         24  get approved and permeated more quickly.

         25                 But the solution -- rent regulation
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          2  doesn't help the problem in your district.  What

          3  will help the problem is building more housing, and

          4  we'd love to work on that with you.

          5                 MR. MARGULIES:  I'd just like to add

          6  one quick perspective on that because I think when

          7  we talk about affordable housing it's one of those

          8  terms that means, you know, as somebody said, you

          9  know, something else to every person who hears it. When

         10  you asked the Housing Commissioner about affordable

         11  housing, she starts going with the income numbers of

         12  the various programs that the City runs, that

         13  doesn't mean affordable because that's a subsidy.

         14  The question is, you know, who's paying for that

         15  subsidy, who's affording it.

         16                 I think you have to start with the

         17  very basic number of what it cost to provide a

         18  minimum unit of housing in the City of New York,

         19  and, you know, as has been noted previously, we have

         20  generally an old housing stock, existing buildings

         21  are our basic housing stock, not new construction,

         22  and the Rent Guidelines Board does look at income

         23  and expense numbers for owners that are filed with

         24  the Finance Department every year.

         25                 We have a real good handle on the
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          2  averages citywide.  And what they basically show is

          3  that the most recent numbers available for, I think,

          4  calendar 2000, that the average cost of operating

          5  and maintaining an apartment, not including debt

          6  service or profit, was about 500 bucks a month,

          7  citywide.  A little bit less in the poor

          8  neighborhoods; a little bit more in the better

          9  neighborhoods where the newer buildings have more

         10  labor costs for porters and doormen and what have

         11  you.  But $500 is your basic operating cost, with no

         12  profit and no debt service.

         13                 So then you have to turn around and

         14  say, okay, well, who can afford that. Well, you need

         15  $20,000 of income, essentially, to afford that.

         16  Okay.  And that's if someone is willing to provide

         17  it to you if they can it debt free and they don't a

         18  profit.  So you're going to add a few hundred

         19  dollars to that for the debt service and the profit,

         20  then you're looking at maybe 700, $800, which son of

         21  a gun, is right where the average rents are, which

         22  is the market rents are pretty much where they

         23  should be.  They're just not in the apartments that

         24  they should be.  And the late Seymour Durus

         25  (phonetic) used to say, we had plenty of affordable
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          2  housing in New York, we just had the wrong people

          3  living in it.

          4                 The bottom line is that rent

          5  regulation distorts where people live, what they pay

          6  for rent.  Has nothing to do with the neighborhood,

          7  has nothing to do with the quality of housing, the

          8  cost of providing it.  Location, location, location

          9  had nothing to do with it.  It's very arbitrary.

         10  What we need is a system that rationalizes that,

         11  deregulation of rents.  But we're not going to see a

         12  huge increase in rents, what we'll see is a

         13  distribution, but then you'll still have the problem

         14  of people who can't afford 700, $800 a month without

         15  a some kind of subsidy, and you have to address that

         16  problem with the construction, changes that Marilyn

         17  was talking about and Joe Strasburg was talking

         18  about, Nick, and you have to address that with

         19  direct subsidy programs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I appreciate

         21  your comments; I just want to make one of my own,

         22  and this is a recommendation to you as well.

         23                 When you come to us as far as

         24  locality is concerned, the City and the State, I

         25  think the City and the State have done a tremendous
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          2  job considering the limited resources we get, and

          3  the unfair share that we don't.

          4                 We are entitled to receive more and

          5  we don't.  The Federal government has walked away

          6  completely from housing, and when are we going to

          7  start focusing in on making sure that Washington

          8  hears this.  And it's unfair for New York City to

          9  take the burden and depend on the State, especially

         10  during a crisis, such as the one we're facing now.

         11  And I hope that you take these comments, as you've

         12  just shared them with us and take them to Washington

         13  because subsidy is the key factor here in making

         14  affordable housing for all New Yorkers, for those

         15  who cannot afford a 700, 800- dollar rent.  And I'm

         16  assuming this is for a one bedroom.

         17                 MR. MARGULIES:  Average size, yeah.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Imagine two,

         19  three bedrooms, which is your average family.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         21  Member Stewart?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.

         24                 Miss Davenport, you said here the

         25  laws create an irrational system in which some well-
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          2  to- do- tenants pay very little rent.  Do you have a

          3  percentage of these, what you call well- to- do who

          4  pay very little rent, any percentage of the total

          5  people, you know, that pay rent?

          6                 MS. DAVENPORT:  No, and that was

          7  actually a quote from The New York Times, and it was

          8  referring to the long- term tenants, particularly

          9  rent- controlled tenants in Manhattan or rent

         10  regulated of any kind, who have held onto these

         11  apartments through generations, and so they've only

         12  had two percent or whatever the guideline increases

         13  are.  So they're very low- rent apartments if you

         14  stay in it for 20 years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you

         16  subscribe to the idea that a rent- controlled

         17  apartment should be measured against your income as

         18  with Section 8, as with other such --

         19                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I wasn't making any

         20  proposals.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What's that?

         22                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I wasn't making any

         23  proposals.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No, I'm just

         25  looking at the --
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          2                 MS. DAVENPORT:  No, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Because I

          4  feel it's unfair.

          5                 MS. DAVENPORT:  You're putting words

          6  in my mouth.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I feel it's

          8  unfair for somebody who has high income, you know,

          9  who has the resources to be paying little or nothing

         10  for an apartment which makes it hard for those who

         11  don't have anything to get an apartment.

         12                 MS. DAVENPORT:  It absolutely is

         13  unfair, and the reality is when you look at the

         14  numbers, the beneficiaries of rent regulations, the

         15  part of the market that is artificially low is

         16  predominantly in Manhattan.  And we have any number

         17  of cases, whether it's Florida or the Hamptons or

         18  wherever the primary residence is that we know this

         19  exists.  I mean, there was an argument in

         20  Westchester County, there was a politician that was

         21  running for office who told people that lived in

         22  Westchester County that even if they had a regulated

         23  apartment in New York they could vote; you're not

         24  supposed to do that.

         25                 So, I think, what we're saying is it
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          2  doesn't provide the benefit to the apartments in the

          3  boroughs.  That marketplace is fairly reflective of

          4  what the market is.  Many rents are below the

          5  allowable regulated rent.  So you have a very skewed

          6  marketplace.  If you have --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I'm just

          8  looking at a way in which that can be corrected.

          9                 MS. DAVENPORT:  If you promote --

         10  well, one way you correct this is by promoting

         11  affordability.  There shouldn't be a low rent

         12  apartment that can be inherited.  Clearly, that

         13  family isn't going to move out of that four- bedroom

         14  apartment, even if there's only one person in the

         15  family.  So, I think, that what you do to have a

         16  normal marketplace is you promote mobility. You let

         17  the market work, the way in many respects it does

         18  anyway in the boroughs.  And the third thing is you

         19  build more housing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.

         21                 I have another question.  It was from

         22  CHIP.  I want an explanation as to when you say that

         23  the assessed real estate tax is kept down based on

         24  the rent.

         25                 MR. MARGULIES:  Yeah.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And so the

          3  City loses money in that fashion, could you explain

          4  all that for me please?

          5                 MR. MARGULIES:  Absolutely, it's a

          6  very important point.  The City is really cutting

          7  off its nose to spite its face in the case of rent

          8  regulations.  And as indicated the difference

          9  between the average stabilized rent and the average

         10  unregulated rent is just under $150, according to

         11  the latest survey.  In a free market, an unregulated

         12  market there would probably be a move downward and

         13  unregulated rents move upward in regulated rents,

         14  and I was estimating that perhaps on average you

         15  might see 100 dollar increase in rents from

         16  deregulation.

         17                 Most of that wouldn't be in the outer

         18  boroughs at all; you wouldn't see a dollar increase

         19  in a lot of neighborhoods, but you'd see, you know,

         20  perhaps several hundred in a lot of Manhattan

         21  apartments, below 96th Street.  But the average

         22  about $100 a unit.  We've got a million regulated

         23  units, and when you do the math, you come out with

         24  an increase in total rent role for those units, and

         25  then you have to look at the way the City assesses
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          2  rental buildings. Essentially they're capitalizing

          3  the rent role; they're looking at it's an income

          4  tax.

          5                 And so the City is going to look at

          6  those increased rent roles, in Manhattan

          7  particularly going to increase the assessments.  My

          8  estimate is the increase in assessments would be

          9  over four billion dollars, primarily in Manhattan,

         10  and that the increased tax revenue that flows from

         11  that would be between two and three- hundred

         12  million.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  Thank all of you.

         16                 We have the Manhattan Borough

         17  President, C. Virginia Fields.

         18                 Thank you.  Please identify yourself

         19  and start.

         20                 MS. FIELDS:   Thank you, and thank

         21  you, Madam Chair.

         22                 I'm C. Virginia Fields, President of

         23  the Borough of Manhattan.  And I want to commend you

         24  and the members of the Housing and Buildings

         25  Committee for bringing us together to discuss an
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          2  issue obviously of great concern to many of us

          3  throughout this City.

          4                 And I offer my wholehearted support

          5  for Intro. 367, and Reso. 690, 691, and 692.

          6                 I want to be perfectly clear in terms

          7  of what I believe we need to do, and what we need to

          8  do is both extend and strengthen the rent

          9  stabilization laws.  I believe that just to renew

         10  them at this time, where we are with respect to

         11  housing in this City is not enough for it was in

         12  1997 that the Senate Majority Leader Bruno

         13  threatened to end rent control as we know it.  In

         14  that year the rent regulation was so weakened that

         15  deregulation of many apartments would occur as a

         16  natural course of events, and indeed that is what

         17  happened.

         18                 As of 2002, through high rent vacancy

         19  decontrol 97,000 New York City apartments have been

         20  deregulated, and we know that once an apartment hits

         21  $2000 a month it is, in fact, lost forever and means

         22  the loss of more units of affordable housing that

         23  Mayor Bloomberg has proposed to build and or

         24  renovate over the next five years.  And based on

         25  this reality, I endorse the City Council's
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          2  initiative to extend rent stabilization, and I

          3  further support the Council's recognition that a

          4  public rent emergency is now a reality in New York

          5  City and the solution is therefore to continue rent

          6  control.

          7                 As to the specific resolutions, of

          8  course, Resolution 691, which calls for a repeal of

          9  the Urstadt Law of 1971, and we know that the

         10  Urstadt Law restricts the City's ability to control

         11  its destiny on a strictly local issue, which is New

         12  York City rents, and I just believe that New York

         13  City should be free to pass its own rent regulation,

         14  and I think that locally we will be able to make

         15  more sense out of it because we live in the City, we

         16  understand the issues, we work with them every day.

         17  Other cities throughout the state are given home

         18  rule over significant local issues.

         19                 The tenants of New York City are

         20  entitled to equal protection and the same rights as

         21  other localities, and in this day and age of an

         22  ever-tightening housing market, we may well see a

         23  tremendous increase in homelessness among moderate

         24  and even middle-income New Yorkers when we look at

         25  what is happening with Mitchell- Lama and project-
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          2  based Section 8 developments in terms of being

          3  bought out of the program.  So it is time to repeal

          4  that restrictive Urstadt Law and allow the City to

          5  take responsibility for its own residents.

          6                 And with respect to Reso. 692,

          7  calling for the New York State Senate to, pass and

          8  for the Governor to approve Assembly Bill 2176- A.

          9  In addition to extending rent regulations to 2008,

         10  this important bill, of course, will provide rent

         11  stabilization protection for all developments

         12  established under Article 2 of the Private Housing

         13  and Finance Law that voluntarily dissolve.  And of

         14  particular interest too is that it will protect all

         15  Mitchell- Lamas currently in various stages of

         16  buyout, no matter when they were built.  This would

         17  lead to the protection of over 5800 units of

         18  Mitchell- Lama housing now going through buyout.

         19  The majority of these developments are right here in

         20  the Borough of Manhattan.  It will also protect

         21  residents of project based Section 8 developments

         22  whose owners have chosen not to renew the HUD

         23  contract.

         24                 Since October of 2002, the City has

         25  more than 5900 units of low- income, project- based
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          2  Section 8 housing, and in the coming year the

          3  potential loss could total more than 18,000 units as

          4  owners opt out of this program.

          5                 So I believe that we must support

          6  this bill.  We must go to Albany.  We must register

          7  our concerns to our State Legislatures and the

          8  Governor and to show how serious we are at a time

          9  when housing is so desperately needed in this City,

         10  and at a time when we need to have rents where

         11  people can manage them.  I certainly believe with

         12  the last part of the previous speaker, that I heard

         13  that we need to build more affordable housing, that

         14  certainly is needed.  But until we get there, we

         15  need to be able to maintain the housing for those

         16  who live in the City, seek to remain in the City,

         17  but to be able to help them to be able to afford to

         18  live in the housing.

         19                 So on April 8th, Mitchell- Lama lobby

         20  day in Albany, I will certainly be there, and

         21  encourage everyone who is here today and others to

         22  join us in Albany so we can carry out fight right to

         23  the Legislatures of this State on behalf of all New

         24  York City residents.

         25                 Thank you, Madam Chairman and members
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          2  of the Committee.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          4  Miss Borough President.

          5                 MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

          6                 This is Lee Chun (phonetic), my

          7  Director of Land Use, and she was just joining me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We all know

          9  her very well.

         10                 Kendall?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 I heard several speakers earlier

         14  today and one of the things I have heard, one said

         15  that a 60 years struggle for housing, and the

         16  problem is still there, and one of the speakers said

         17  what is needed is more housing development, and they

         18  cited examples that developers and investors are

         19  shying away and they're now building across the

         20  river because of the fact of the many regulations

         21  that we have.  How do you answer to that statement?

         22  How do you answer to that, that the reason why we're

         23  not having all these new development and the reason

         24  why we stay in the housing shortage, the problem is

         25  because of these same regulations and so the
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          2  developers and the investors who are sitting here

          3  today, they say they going, they shying away and

          4  they going across the river, how do you answer to

          5  that?

          6                 MS. FIELDS:  Well, I certainly do

          7  agree with the fact that we need to build more

          8  affordable housing that can be afforded by the

          9  people, the working and the people in this City, and

         10  I do believe that we have to look at what must be

         11  done to encourage that.

         12                 In a report that my office released

         13  about two years ago called, "A Time to Build," we

         14  address a number of these issues, and cited, number

         15  one, the cost of land in New York City is quite

         16  high, and that adds to development costs.  We talked

         17  about the need to do an assemblage of larger plots

         18  of land -- of smaller plots rather so they become

         19  larger plots so that development can move forward.

         20  We talked about the need to offer incentives, quite

         21  frankly for the building of affordable housing, and

         22  I think that all of those factors are relevant to

         23  our ability to bring on line more affordable

         24  housing, and even during these difficult fiscal

         25  times I think that we should not stray away from
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          2  that need because it exists and it gets even more,

          3  but I think added to that, the loss of affordable

          4  housing through vacancy, luxury vacancy decontrol

          5  and if there's a weakening of the rent regulation

          6  laws, then we lose more of the people who are in

          7  that housing now and they're the ones who are going

          8  to have to go to Jersey or to Georgia or to Alabama

          9  or someplace else, faraway from here because they

         10  will not be able to afford to live in the housing.

         11  So let's keep the rent regulations while we do some

         12  of these other things.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, in

         14  essence, what you're saying is that you realize that

         15  60 years of this regulation have not done a great

         16  deal for housing.  So we need to look at the entire

         17  picture as far as development is concerned, as far

         18  as incurring the investors are concerned.  See what

         19  we can do best to have them do more development,

         20  that's what you're saying.

         21                 MS. FIELDS:  What I'm saying, I

         22  guess, is it's two- track.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yeah.

         24                 MS. FIELDS:  We need to be able to

         25  retain rent regulation so that those who are in the
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          2  house and will be able to stay in the City and

          3  afford it.  On the other track, yes, we need to

          4  build more affordable housing and we have to look at

          5  incentives and ways to encourage that development,

          6  and part of it is some of the recommendations that I

          7  made mention.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          9

         10                 MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15                 MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We've

         17  reached a little bit of an emergency situation here.

         18    We have many, many speakers, and I know you want

         19  to hear all of them.  This meeting will be adjourned

         20  at five o'clock, so in all probability everyone will

         21  not get a chance to speak.  I think what I can do,

         22  one of the things to speed it up is may be go from

         23  three minutes to two minutes.  This way people will

         24  at least get a chance to say something, and I ask

         25  everybody to abide by the two- minute clock. And,
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          2  you know, again kind of keep your emotions at bay,

          3  that would help.  Thank you.

          4                 The next speakers are, Judith

          5  Goldner, Adnene Holder, Cynthee Cortes, Dave

          6  Robinson, Stephanie -- you know if you're with the

          7  group, and Harvey Epstein.  I don't know if you all

          8  plan on speaking.  I would appreciate it maybe if

          9  you could kind of consolidate, you know, if you're

         10  all with the same organization if you could

         11  consolidate what you want to say.

         12                 Will someone identify yourself and

         13  start?

         14                 MS. GOLDNER:  I'm Judith Goldner with

         15  the Legal Aid Society, Civil Appeals and Law Reform

         16  Unit.  Unfortunately, my colleague, Adnene Holder,

         17  who is also the tenant member of the Rent Guidelines

         18  Board had to leave for another pressing meeting.

         19                 I'm just going to introduce the other

         20  speakers and let them say what they have to say.  We

         21  are not all from the same organization so I think it

         22  won't be possible to consolidate our testimony

         23  totally, but we will certainly try to do the best

         24  and limit it to a short period of time.

         25                 Next to me is Cynthee Cortes, she is
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          2  a paralegal at the Legal Aid Society representing

          3  tenants.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Please, let

          5  each speaker identify themselves and then they can

          6  speak, rather than you be the MC.

          7                 MS. GOLDNER:  That's fine.  Let me

          8  just say one thing that I don't think has been

          9  stressed before, which is the one thing that all the

         10  speakers, especially the landlord speakers don't

         11  seem to emphasize, which is that these are not just

         12  laws the regulate rent.  These are laws which

         13  prevent tenants for being evicted for any reason or

         14  no reason.  If you live in unregulated housing, your

         15  landlord can evict you for any reason or no reason

         16  as long as it's not a discriminatory reason. There's

         17  a substantial difference between that and rent

         18  regulated housing which protects tenants from

         19  unjustifiable evictions.

         20                 So it's important for the Council to

         21  understand that that's a totally critical part of

         22  rent regulation and when they landlords say they

         23  want to eliminate that, they want to be able to

         24  evict tenants for no reason, and Cynthee is in a

         25  real good position to talk about that because she
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          2  sees many tenants in Queens who are unfortunately

          3  evicted for no reason because they're in unregulated

          4  apartments.

          5                 Cynthee.

          6                 MS. CORTES:  I work at the Queens

          7  Civil Courthouse office.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  State your

          9  name please?

         10                 MS. CORTES:  Cynthee Cortes, I work

         11  with the Legal Aid Society in their Queens Civil

         12  Courthouse Office, and what we do is we advise

         13  tenants there on a regular basis and refer them to

         14  our services whenever possible.

         15                 What we see is that affordable

         16  housing in Queens is very difficult to come across.

         17  Generally, rents in studios, one bedroom, two

         18  bedroom and three bedrooms run from 1,000 to $1500,

         19  and the majority of our clients are black and

         20  Latino, or Southeast Asian families, which generally

         21  need or are looking for two and three- bedroom

         22  apartments but they cannot afford them. Most of our

         23  clients are fixed income, Social Security, SSI,

         24  public assistance or are working but who have been

         25  facing increasingly lower incomes because they have
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          2  either been laid off or been on unemployment for a

          3  period of time, or whose hours are being reduced.

          4                 We have a lot of unregulated housing

          5  in Queens, but that does not offer tenants the

          6  protection of renewal leases or a lease at all.  It

          7  does not offer tenants gradual increases. Landlords

          8  can raise it from -- they don't gradually raise

          9  them; they tend to raise them 100, 200 or $300 at a

         10  time, and tenants are forced to look elsewhere.

         11  Rent stable apartments are not easy to come by, and

         12  tenants who apply for this housing face

         13  discrimination in different ways.

         14                 One of the ones that I hear a lot at

         15  the courthouse is that they're turned away because

         16  they have small children, and that is illegal, but

         17  for a tenant who is on a limited time to find

         18  another apartment, does not have the opportunity to

         19  necessarily go and raise that before the New York

         20  City Human Rights Commission and get it resolved in

         21  the time that they need.

         22                 We have tenants who are in rent

         23  stable apartments and that they are being

         24  unnecessarily brought to court on personal use

         25  holdovers or illegal sublet holdovers that really
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          2  have no basis, and it just creates a problem for

          3  these people who have to work and when they're taken

          4  away from their work it takes away from their

          5  income, and it makes it increasingly difficult for

          6  them to make their rent payments.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8                 Sir?

          9                 MR. ROBINSON:  My name is David

         10  Robinson.  I'm with Legal Support Unit of Legal

         11  Service for New York City.

         12                 I'd like in my brief time to make

         13  several points. We've given you extensive written

         14  testimony with a lot of background.  The first thing

         15  is to say that a substantial portion of rent

         16  stabilized tenants are low income people who

         17  desperately need the protection of rent

         18  stabilization.  Twenty- two percent of the rent

         19  stabilized tenants, 240,000 households are living in

         20  poverty and a quarter of them pay more than 50

         21  percent of their income in rent.

         22                 We lost a whole lot in the Rent

         23  Regulation Reform Act in 1993 and 1997, and in the

         24  Revised Rent Stabilization Code, the one- sided

         25  revision, pro- landlord in 2000.  The resolutions
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          2  before you begin to go in the right direction of

          3  restoring some of those protections, particularly

          4  with respect to the uses that are given to landlords

          5  during vacancies.  The individual apartment

          6  improvement increases, as have been mentioned, which

          7  allow for large rent increases, used to be there was

          8  a possibility of court approval.  Right now

          9  landlords are allowed to get away with whatever they

         10  want.  They can report as repairs made, you know,

         11  costs that actually aren't made and unless a tenant

         12  files a rent overcharge and most tenants don't, the

         13  landlord gets away with it.  The four- year statute

         14  of limitations, the weakening of that allows

         15  landlords to get away with further fraud and

         16  overcharging, and the 20- percent vacancy allowance

         17  gives the landlords way too much incentive to get

         18  rid of existing tenants, creates a losery (sic)

         19  tenancies and get the apartments out of the system.

         20                 I'd like to make one more point,

         21  which is that in terms of the missing units of rent

         22  stabilization, the City has sold thousands of units

         23  of City- owned housing which already were affordable

         24  housing back to private owners or various kinds, not

         25  for- profit or profit, that 99,000 units missing for

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  rent stabilization, probably most of that can be

          3  explained by those City- owned housing units that

          4  are now rent regulated.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          7                 MS. KRONSEND- BACKERY:  Good

          8  afternoon.  My name is Stephanie Kronsend- Backery

          9  (phonetic), and I'm at the Citywide Task Force and

         10  Housing Court.

         11                 And one of the most important things

         12  that rent stabilization does for New York City

         13  tenants is protect them from unwanted or unwarranted

         14  eviction.  Time and time again our staff see people

         15  who are in court, particularly in gentrified

         16  neighborhoods who cannot afford to move into

         17  unregulated apartments because the rents are $1,000,

         18  $1,100, and these are poor and low- income people

         19  who cannot afford that.  So keep in mind the most

         20  important thing from my point of view that the rent

         21  stabilization law provide is tenant protections.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         23  You get the prize so far.

         24                 MR. EPSTEIN:  Good afternoon.  My

         25  name is Harvey Epstein from Housing Conversation
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          2  Coordinators.

          3                 I want to echo what we said before to

          4  everyone. We agree that we need more affordable

          5  housing but there was some misstatements that were

          6  said before and I just want to clarify them.

          7                 There is an increase in rent

          8  stabilized apartments through two programs.  One,

          9  Steve mentioned was cities disposed of over 50,000

         10  units of housing from its City's housing stock to

         11  private development.  All that has been put into

         12  rent regulation.              In addition, 421A tax

         13  abatement takes units that were put in new

         14  construction that were not regulated and add those

         15  to the rent regulation.  That doesn't mean that over

         16  90,000 units of rent regulated housing have been

         17  lost in mostly gentrifying neighborhoods.  Those are

         18  two different things. We've gotten more units.

         19  We've got additional units, but that does not make

         20  up for all the lost units of housing that we've gone

         21  because of the changes in rent laws in 1997.

         22                 In addition, as it stands now new

         23  development isn't subject to rent regulation unless

         24  the developer chooses to be subject to rent

         25  regulation.  So the excuse that developers don't
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          2  want to develop in Manhattan because they don't want

          3  to be subject to rent regulation isn't true.  It's

          4  only if they want to get an economic incentive

          5  through 421A or some other program to get economic

          6  incentive.

          7                 Finally, the 421A program as it

          8  exists now below 14th Street or above 96th Street in

          9  Manhattan and in the outer boroughs does not require

         10  the development of affordable housing when you get

         11  the 421A tax abatement.  All it requires is that

         12  you're building new construction.  So if we wanted

         13  to expand affordable housing that's another

         14  mechanism to do it.  So subject to rent regulation,

         15  but there's no 80/20 requirement of 20 units of

         16  affordable housing.  And like Judith said the

         17  eviction protections are key to this.  It's not just

         18  the rents, but it's the right to organize, the right

         19  to protect your tenancy, your right to stay there,

         20  the rights to rents renewals and increases, that's

         21  fundamental to our concern.

         22                 In addition, just to let you know

         23  I've submitted testimony from Community Board 3, I'm

         24  also Chair of the Community Board 3, and we've also

         25  taken a position in support of the renewal of the
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          2  rent laws.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          5  all very much. Good job.

          6                 Council Member, do you?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just because

          9  I look at you doesn't mean you have to ask a

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yeah.  No, I

         12  have a concern about those.  We would like to

         13  protect the tenants in the apartment, but I find it

         14  strange that many times what we do, the tenant may

         15  just have lost a job and the owner might be trying

         16  to work it with the tenant to keep them in that

         17  apartment, but they cannot pay because they just

         18  lost their job, and the only -- how they can get

         19  help from the system is that you've got to get what

         20  we call an eviction or get some notice of eminent

         21  eviction before this system will help them.  How can

         22  we change around that in a way that instead of going

         23  through the court system to evict them, and then you

         24  have a problem there, the animosity builds up and

         25  then that tenant may be what we call an emergency
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          2  case, which costs the City, or the State, or the

          3  Federal Government more money because they pay over

          4  $3,000 per tenant per month.  Whereas if the tenant

          5  was in the apartment it would only be $700.  How

          6  could we change around that system?

          7                 MS. CORTES:  There are two things

          8  that we need to do.  One is the City Welfare

          9  Department needs to work more closely with the Legal

         10  Aid Society in negotiating with the State on the

         11  Jiggets.  The City needs to take a proactive

         12  position, but the shelter allowances are simply

         13  inadequate.  That would help the tenants that are

         14  families on public assistance, that would help them

         15  if we could raise the shelter allowance as our

         16  Jiggets lawsuit has, and if the City would support

         17  us in that lawsuit, which they have not.

         18                 The other thing is for people who are

         19  not on welfare, but need what you call a one- shot

         20  deal or another emergency grant, the Welfare

         21  Department should not require there an actual

         22  eviction notice.  The fact that they do that is

         23  wrong. It's not required by the regulations, but

         24  again the Welfare Department needs to work advocates

         25  to change the system so the system works better for
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          2  everyone, for the landlords and for tenants, but

          3  unfortunately they haven't done that, and we would

          4  like to see them work with us on those because those

          5  are two changes that could make a huge difference

          6  for both tenants and landlords.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  One of the

          8  explanations that I had from someone from the City

          9  is that the emergency monies are federal monies and

         10  it can only be used in that fashion.

         11                 MS. CORTES:  Well, they can only be

         12  used for an emergency, but it's an emergency if the

         13  landlord --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.

         15                 MS. CORTES:  -- They're cramping the

         16  landlord's certification process where the landlord

         17  says, look, I'm going to bring a case against them,

         18  but it shouldn't have to go to court.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No.

         20                 MS. CORTES:  There's no requirement

         21  in the Federal Law that says that a landlord has to

         22  bring an eviction case and it has to be an eviction

         23  case or a 72- hour notice or 48- hour notice, or

         24  this notice or that notice.  There is no requirement

         25  of that in the Federal Law.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well, we may

          3  have to let them know that because what it is, is it

          4  only becomes emergency when that person is in the

          5  shelter, that's what I'm saying. Because it has to

          6  be -- to me, from the explanation that I got is that

          7  a person has to be out, has to be evicted before

          8  they give that emergency money to take care of.

          9                 MR. EPSTEIN:  Threatened eviction,

         10  not necessarily evicted.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well,

         12  there's many a time they're threatened and what

         13  happens is that we have to get to get three and four

         14  show causes before something happens.  And I find

         15  that is so strange, like we working against each

         16  other in trying to help the tenants, and I just want

         17  you to know that someone is not telling us the truth

         18  as far as helping these tenants is concerned, and

         19  frankly it seems as though we like spending the

         20  emergency money rather than trying to do the

         21  prevention.

         22                 MS. CORTES:  I totally agree with

         23  you, and we would welcome your assistance with the

         24  Department of Social Services to try and get them to

         25  work with tenants and the landlords to make sure
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          2  that our clients don't get evicted, because the last

          3  thing we need is more of our clients in the shelter

          4  system.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 The next speakers are, Ralph Carbone,

          7  Jamison, and Daniel Waxman.

          8                 Do we have to go in order or can we?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No, you

         10  could start right now, just identify yourself and

         11  speak.

         12                 MR. WAXMAN:  My name is Daniel Waxman

         13  of the Joint Public Affairs Committee for Senior

         14  Citizens.  Good afternoon.

         15                 As long as I've been here you very

         16  rarely hear anything said about rent control

         17  apartments.  Everybody speaks about the rent

         18  stabilized.  Rent control is a very important thing

         19  that effects senior citizens.

         20                 Each year the Rent Guidelines Board

         21  adjust rent increases for rent stabilized

         22  apartments.  Rent controlled apartments are never

         23  adjusted for rent increases.  Each year for over 38

         24  years rent for rent controlled apartments are

         25  increased seven- and- a- half percent.  Also for
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          2  many years an additional fuel charge is added to the

          3  rent.  The fuel charge I pay is more than $17 every

          4  month.  Rent control is the forgotten part of rent

          5  regulations.  Rent controlled apartments are

          6  occupied by senior citizens, the people least likely

          7  to afford rent increases.

          8                 Now these are the reforms that should

          9  be included. Adjust rents each year for rent

         10  controlled apartments by the Rent Guidelines Board.

         11  No more seven- and- a- half percent year in and year

         12  out for 38 more years.  Abolish the onerous, monthly

         13  fuel charges.  Number three, rent controlled

         14  apartments should become rent stabilized.  One

         15  system of rent laws for all tenants. Number four,

         16  preserve the only affordable housing stock in New

         17  York City, and that is rent control and rent

         18  stabilized housing. Number five, eliminate the

         19  maximum base rent system for rent controlled

         20  apartments, and number six, last but not least,

         21  renew, strengthen, improve, expand rent control and

         22  rent stabilize laws.

         23                 Your careful consideration of these

         24  reforms will be appreciated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Waxman.

          3                 MR. WAXMAN:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Gentlemen,

          5  would you please step up to the -- you would stay

          6  there if you want.

          7                 MR. JAMISON:  Good afternoon.  My

          8  name is Barry Jamison.  I'm representing DC 37's

          9  Housing Committee.  We represent 125,000 members,

         10  and 50,000 retirees.  We're going to combine our

         11  testimony and I'll turn over to Michael Turell in a

         12  moment.

         13                 But I just want to say, DC 37

         14  supports the measures that are being discussed

         15  today.  The Intro. Bill and the resolutions.  We

         16  support them wholeheartedly.  We think because there

         17  is a housing crisis, and a housing crisis continues

         18  to exist, there needs to be the preservation of the

         19  current affordable housing.

         20                 We support our colleagues at Local

         21  1359, and I'll let Ralph Carbone talk about what

         22  those issues.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. CARBONE:  Good afternoon.  My

         25  name is Ralph Carbone, and I'm President of Local
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          2  1359, Rent Regulations Services Employees, DC 37,

          3  AFSCME.  I'm also a member of the DC 37 Housing

          4  Committee.

          5                 I appreciate this opportunity to

          6  testify before the New York City's Council Committee

          7  on Housing and Buildings concerning Intro. 367 and

          8  Resolutions 690, 691, and 692.

          9                 I am a wholehearted supporter of both

         10  the bill and the resolutions and wish to personally

         11  thank Council Speaker Gifford Miller, and Council

         12  Members Christine Quinn and Melinda Katz for their

         13  sponsorship and support of these much needed

         14  measures.  I further thank Housing and Buildings

         15  Committee Chairperson Madeline Provenzano for

         16  supporting Intro. 367 and Resolution 690; however,

         17  she can do more and support Resolutions 691 and 692.

         18                 I speak not only as the President of

         19  a Local, whose 430 members administer this State's

         20  rent regulatory system for the New York State

         21  Division of Housing and Community Renewal, but as an

         22  attorney who has worked in the field for almost 21

         23  years; and if, therefore, fully familiar with the

         24  need for the creation, as well as the preservation

         25  of affordable housing in this state.
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          2                 Millions of tenants will face

          3  skyrocketing rent increases and possible eviction if

          4  New York City's rent regulatory laws are allowed to

          5  expire on April 1st.  Indeed, the Census Bureau has

          6  found that the City's apartment vacancy rant

          7  currently stands at 2.94 percent, well below the

          8  legal threshold amount of five percent to continue

          9  rent regulation, further establishing that a housing

         10  emergency continues to exist.  This emergency,

         11  combined with the current weakened state of the

         12  fabric of rent regulation has greatly exacerbated

         13  the problems that low, moderate, and middle- income

         14  residents have had in retaining, as well as

         15  obtaining an affordable place in which to live.

         16  Moreover, it is now more than apparent that the

         17  high- rent vacancy decontrol provisions of the rent

         18  laws have been a failure in that those provisions

         19  have only served as an incentive to owners to

         20  deregulate as many units of housing as possible,

         21  rather than remove the rich from the protections of

         22  the rent laws, their ostensible purpose.  In fact,

         23  those provisions have only served to devastate

         24  affordable housing in this City, as huge areas of

         25  the Borough of Manhattan have already been
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          2  deregulated.

          3                 A recent study has shown that

          4  approximately 99,000 units of regulated housing has

          5  been lost since the advent of high rent decontrol in

          6  1993.  Seventy- seven thousand of those units since

          7  the State Legislature further relaxed those

          8  provisions in 1997.  The problem has become so acute

          9  that luxury decontrol now occurs in parts of

         10  Brooklyn and Queens, making it even more difficult

         11  to locate an affordable apartment in which to live.

         12                 I'm going to borrow some of my

         13  colleague's time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No

         15  borrowing.

         16                 MR. CARBONE:  No borrowing?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just sum up.

         18                 MR. CARBONE:  Sum up.

         19                 Therefore, what must be done, first

         20  and foremost, is for the City Council to review the

         21  expiring rent laws without any further weakening

         22  amendments.  As a result, the Council must pass

         23  Intro. 367 and Resolution 690, which find, among

         24  other things, that a housing emergency continues to

         25  exist in New York City and that as a result the rent
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          2  stabilization and rent control laws shall be

          3  extended.

          4                 In addition, the Count must also pass

          5  Resolution 692, which calls upon the State Senate to

          6  pass, and the Governor to approve, Assembly Bill

          7  A2716, which the Borough President of Manhattan did

          8  a very good job of describing.

          9                 It is also important that the City

         10  Council pass Resolution 691, something many of us

         11  have been seeking for years, which calls upon the

         12  State Legislature to real the Urstadt Law.         Finally

         13  , it is important that the City Council realize the

         14  negative effects that its actions or inaction can

         15  have on the availability of affordable housing.  The

         16  weakening of the rent regulatory laws, regulations

         17  and policies alone --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Please

         19  finish up.

         20                 MR. CARBONE:  I'm on the last

         21  paragraph.

         22                  -- Have had a devastating effect on

         23  the preservation and maintenance of the state's

         24  affordable housing stock with the concomitant loss

         25  of thousands of units of affordable housing.
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          2                 The City Council must find that a

          3  housing emergency continues to exist, extend the

          4  rent regulatory laws, support the repeal of high

          5  rent vacancy deregulation, and otherwise support the

          6  enactment of A2716 in its entirety, and support the

          7  repeal of the Urstadt Law.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         10  very much. That's all of you.

         11                 Adele Bender, Lamar Sellars, Richard

         12  Barr.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         14  He's going to mail it in.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  He's going

         16  to mail it in, that is the best one yet.

         17                 Bernice Rosenthal.

         18                 Decide who wants to start, state your

         19  name and go.

         20                 MS. BENDER:  My name is Adele Bender.

         21    I'm the Queens Borough Coordinator for JPAC Joint

         22  Public Affairs Committee for Older Adults, and I'm a

         23  member of the Queens League of United Tenants, and

         24  the Citywide Tenant Coalition.

         25                 I am here to, I guess pretty much
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          2  repeat what a lot of people have said.  We've got to

          3  get rid of that Urstadt Law because we have to be

          4  able to work with our City Council people, and we

          5  are entitled to home rule.

          6                 New York is a big, unique City that

          7  has a very big housing problem, and if we lose our

          8  rent regulations or if they are not strengthened

          9  you're going to have a lot of problems here. We're

         10  not Boston that has a lot of young people and maybe

         11  even hear the big outcry when they got rid of their

         12  rent regulations; although there are a lot of

         13  problems with older people that you didn't hear

         14  about.  But New York City if full of a lot of older

         15  people or people that are aging in, and I hear

         16  complaints every day.  I get telephone calls, I hear

         17  complaints every day.

         18                 At JPAC, we work on the JASA

         19  (phonetic) premises and all I'm hearing -- we have

         20  attorneys there -- and there are housing problems

         21  galore.  People are being threatened with evictions

         22  for every little infraction.  Why?  Because these

         23  landlords, there's a housing crisis, and since we

         24  have a system of demand and supply, where there's a

         25  smaller housing supply and a bigger demand for
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          2  housing they've been making hay while the sun rises.

          3                 We've got to have stronger rent laws,

          4  and I'll tell you I'm rent stabilized, but I speak

          5  to a lot of people that get rent stabilized

          6  increases and they say, where is it going to stop.

          7  With the MCIs.  MCI, first of all they should be a

          8  little more restricted.  Second of all, if you're

          9  going to have an MCI, have it as a surcharge.  You

         10  don't include it in the regular rent forever, so

         11  that when you get an increase you're getting an

         12  increase on the MCI together with the regular rent

         13  I mean they're doing everything to see it that it

         14  hits like $2,000. Well, a lot of people can't even

         15  afford $1,000.

         16                 You've got to strengthen the rent

         17  laws, and I'm here asking for the crumbs of rent

         18  stabilization because to me it's crumbs.  Those

         19  increases have got to stop.

         20                 The seniors get a COLA of 1.4

         21  percent.  Okay.  I don't know what these guys up in

         22  Washington are thinking.  SCRIE has got to be

         23  expanded.  The cap on SCRIE is too little.  I have

         24  people that come to me --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  Could
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          2  you please sum up?

          3                 MS. BENDER:  Yeah.  I have people

          4  that come to me that have an income of like $38,000

          5  and they're hurting.  So it's going across the board

          6  from low income, to middle income, to upper- middle

          7  income.  We're all hurting, and we want stronger,

          8  stronger rent laws.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Who's next?

         11                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  My name is Bernice

         12  Rosenthal.  I'm a rent stabilized tenant, and I'm a

         13  senior citizen who cannot afford to retire, and I

         14  want to talk about that.

         15                 People know about the plight of

         16  senior citizens on fixed incomes.  I and many other

         17  senior citizens are on defined contribution plans.

         18  In these plans you put in a certain amount every

         19  month, but you get back a different amount depending

         20  on the market.  So you don't know what your income

         21  will be.  The decline in the stock market has

         22  devastated defined contribution plans. Many senior

         23  citizens, like me, have had to postpone retirement.

         24  Some of us will have to work until we are well into

         25  our seventies, and when we do retire our income will
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          2  drop.

          3                 If the rent was decontrolled while we

          4  were still working we will be in serious trouble.

          5  Once retired, we cannot pay a decontrolled rent.

          6  What then?  Buying a co- op or a condo at today's

          7  prices is not an option.  We can't make the

          8  payments. Moving to a part of the City where a car

          9  is a necessity is not an option either.  Some of us

         10  have impaired vision and can't drive, and some of us

         11  just don't know how to drive.

         12                 As for senior citizens who retired

         13  some time ago, many have had to cut back on

         14  necessities because their payments from defined

         15  contribution plans have shrunk so drastically.  Even

         16  if the stock market recovers, and who knows when

         17  this will be, there will still be ups and downs.

         18  Retirees can't ride out the downs, especially if

         19  their rent has been decontrolled when the market was

         20  up.

         21                 Anyone who based their retirement

         22  plans on bank CDs is also in trouble because the

         23  interest is way down.  There's also the problem of

         24  inflation.  A pension that is adequate now might not

         25  be adequate 20 years from now, and this is
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          2  especially a problem for women because of our longer

          3  life expectancy.

          4                 Forcing a senior citizen out of his

          5  home or her home doesn't benefit other tenants, and

          6  I think people have made that point.  People forced

          7  out of Manhattan go to Brooklyn or Queens and they

          8  drive up rent there.  So there's a ripple effect.

          9  High- income senior, high- income people displace

         10  middle- income people, who displace low- income

         11  people, who become homeless.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         13  Please finish up.

         14                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  So please repeal high

         15  income, high rent decontrol, or at the very least

         16  exempt senior citizens from it.

         17                 Thank you for considering.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19                 Mr. Sellars?

         20                 MR. SELLARS:  Thank you.

         21                 Good afternoon, Madam Chair and

         22  Members of the Housing and Building Committee.  I'm

         23  Lamar Sellars.  I'm President of the Lenox Terrace

         24  Association of Concerned Tenants.                 The

         25  residents of the Lenox Terrace are many, and are
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          2  comprised of young, the middle aged and the elderly.

          3                 The income sectors are just as

          4  varied.  The residents of the Lenox Terrace Complex

          5  have lived in the community for some, all of their

          6  lives and for others half.  They have supported the

          7  neighborhood and are now looking to retire with some

          8  semblance of respect and pride.  The owners of our

          9  complex are initiating MCI's, major capital

         10  improvements on the property, which has been allowed

         11  to fall into disrepair for nearly 50 years without a

         12  lot of routine maintenance.  Once the MCI is

         13  granted, the costs are being passed onto tenants.

         14  If we are to incur these costs, I feel it should be

         15  at least shared by owners.  The costs never ends.

         16  The owners are allowed to continue repayment even

         17  once the projects are paid in full.  This is not

         18  right.

         19                 Also the owners of the Lenox Terrace

         20  property are doing individual improvements once an

         21  apartment is vacated.  He puts in cheap material,

         22  such as flooring, light fixtures and the like, and

         23  then is allowed to raise the rent more than 100

         24  percent.

         25                 In the instance of a two- bedroom
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          2  unit, the increase is around $2,000 per month;

          3  thereby, opening the door for deregulation.

          4  Thereafter raising the rent above the 2,000- dollar

          5  mark, removes that unit from rent regulatory status.

          6    A current resident interested in an upgraded

          7  situated is no longer allowed to pay the normal

          8  transfer increase of six percent of the former rent,

          9  but the new inflated amount.  We cannot afford this

         10  rent; therefore, we are forced to seek housing

         11  elsewhere which is difficult to impossible.

         12                 It is tantamount that the City

         13  Council consider these citizens as you go about

         14  debating the renewal of the rent laws.  We feel that

         15  not only should they be renewed but strengthened, as

         16  without the strengthened laws we will have no future

         17  in the community we've lived and loved; thereby

         18  making the future glim for our children.

         19                 We also feel that the City Council

         20  should look into DACR's practices, as they are

         21  bizarre at best.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24                 Linda Zoblotsky, Mitchell Redmond,

         25  and Georgina Crisp.
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          2                 Wait a minute, you're Linda.

          3                 MS. ZOBLOTSKY:  My name is Linda

          4  Zoblotsky, and I'm a rent stabilized tenant.  I live

          5  in the upper west side, and I prepared a statement,

          6  but I've also been listening to the people speaking

          7  in the interest of the real estate industry and the

          8  landlords, and they say that if we get rid of rent

          9  regulations the market will correct itself and there

         10  will be affordable housing for all of us, even those

         11  of us who are concerned about affordable housing

         12  that aren't in this room.  And I have to tell you

         13  that those of us who belong to MET Council, to

         14  Tenants and Neighbors, those of us with yellow tags,

         15  those of us that are concerned about affordable

         16  housing do not trust getting rid of the rent

         17  regulation laws.  We do not trust that there will be

         18  affordable housing in place by 2006.

         19                 I would like to see the rent

         20  regulations extended to 2008.  Landlord

         21  representatives have said what is fair, what isn't

         22  fair.  I'll tell you what is fair.  What is fair is

         23  that people who are teachers, who are retired, who

         24  are artists, who are waitresses, who are

         25  secretaries, who provide support services for the
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          2  City need affordable housing, and right now rent

          3  stabilization provides us with housing that is 50

          4  percent and more of our income.  What is not fair is

          5  that the housing that is being developed in this

          6  City by Donald Trump, that is being developed in the

          7  upper west side in Chelsea, in the lower east side

          8  is being developed for CEOs, for business- people,

          9  and for landlords that can afford 2,000 and $3,000 a

         10  month.

         11                 I am here to beg you to extend rent

         12  regulations to June, 2008.  All I want is to stay in

         13  my home.  I currently pay $740 a month, for an

         14  eight- by- 10 studio, in an old building with

         15  constant problems from leaking, rodents, and

         16  security.  I'm not one of those people the landlords

         17  say is extremely wealthy and taking advantage of an

         18  apartment I got by lottery.  What lottery? I paid a

         19  real estate agent for my apartment, and I want to

         20  keep my home.  I've been there for 10 years.

         21                 I support the extension of rent

         22  regulations.  I would like to see the Urstadt Laws

         23  thrown out the window.  I want to see stronger rent

         24  laws so that people who have problems with their

         25  landlords who face eviction have some kind of
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          2  rights, some kind of mercy, some ear to hear our

          3  concerns about being thrown out on the street.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 Okay.  We're getting a little

          7  rambunctious here.

          8                 Dave Powell.  Okay.  Lorraine Allen.

          9  Is that you? Mickey Gensler, Clair Dockery.

         10                 Someone that's seated, please state

         11  your name and start.

         12                 MR. POWELL:  My name is Dave Powell.

         13  I'm an organizer from the Metropolitan Council on

         14  Housing, and we're here today to express our

         15  overwhelming support for the four measures that are

         16  before this committee.

         17                 Regarding Intro. 367 and Reso. 690,

         18  which renew City rent control and stabilization

         19  without weakening amends, this is a great first

         20  step, and we're particularly glad to see these

         21  measures being introduced by the leadership of the

         22  Council, and we take this as a positive indication

         23  that perhaps this Council will respond to the

         24  housing needs of the majority rather than the real

         25  estate aspiration of the minority, something that
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          2  the previous Council leadership failed to do

          3  greatly.

          4                 We urge members of the Committee to

          5  pass these measures and to lobby their colleagues to

          6  do the same, and particularly we urge the passage

          7  and ask for the Committee's support of Resolution

          8  691, the recommendation to the state to abolish

          9  Urstadt.  It's no secret that that's the big case

         10  here of why we can't get stronger rent laws.  The

         11  Urstadt provision has New York City tenants hogtied,

         12  and previous council leaderships refused to let this

         13  provision see the light of day.  We're glad that the

         14  current leadership is showing a little bit more

         15  enlightened behavior on that.

         16                 Having said that, having acknowledged

         17  as we all have that the rent laws cannot be

         18  strengthened by the City Council unless Urstadt is

         19  removed, there are several things which this Council

         20  can do, and we're a little dismayed that they have

         21  not acted upon yet.  It has been said before, rent

         22  controlled tenants need relief with regard to rent

         23  increases, and we urge the passage of Intro. 196,

         24  and the abolishment of the fuel pass along.

         25                 Specifically, which hasn't been
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          2  mentioned very much today, I'd like to say this time

          3  next year, I hope, I hope the City Council does well

          4  to eradicate the horrible previous legacy it has

          5  with regard to the City's lead poisoned children,

          6  which overwhelmingly --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          8  Please sum up, that's not up for discussion.

          9                 MR. POWELL:  Surely.  I understand,

         10  and I'm a little dismayed that it's not been a

         11  discussion before this Committee because there's an

         12  intro out there that's been kicking around for many

         13  years.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  All right.

         15  Could you just sum up please?

         16                 MR. POWELL:  Certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have a

         18  long way to go.

         19                 MR. POWELL:  For the tenants and

         20  their children who live in the most deteriorated

         21  housing stock in the City, we hope that the Council

         22  will pass Intro. 101, and give justice to those

         23  tenants and their families.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. ALLEN:  My name is Lorraine
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          2  Allen.  I'm a tenant in a rent stabilized building

          3  in Sunnyside, Queens.  I also work for a landlord,

          4  so I see the rent issues from both sides.

          5                 Incidentally, the builder who said

          6  that there is no spread between the rent regulated

          7  apartments and market rate apartments has never been

          8  to Queens.  We have rent control apartments, one

          9  bedrooms renting for less than $400, about $325, up

         10  to market rate apartments 1,200 for a market rate

         11  one- bedroom apartment, that's quite a spread.

         12                 Today I would like to address three

         13  points:  The rent registration statements, DHCR's

         14  functioning, and the Urstadt Laws.

         15                 In renewing the rent regulations,

         16  please restore the importance of the annual rent

         17  registration statements.  The statement is very

         18  clear as to the rents, the legal rent, including any

         19  changes.  The tenant is instructed to challenge any

         20  mistakes and has four years to bring an overcharged

         21  complaint. The landlord is obligated to send this

         22  form to the tenant and to DHCR, and responsible

         23  landlords do so.  Because of this, in 1997 the State

         24  Legislature required that when there is a rent

         25  dispute this document, filed four years earlier
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          2  becomes the basis for the legal rent, adding the

          3  increases.  Because of a four- year statute of

          4  limitations it cannot be challenged.

          5                 In November of 2000, DHCR took it

          6  upon themselves to change that law so that now the

          7  legal rent in a dispute is whatever the landlord

          8  charge four years earlier plus increases. Usually

          9  this works to the benefit of the landlord, but not

         10  always.  In one DHCR made the legal rent whatever

         11  the tenant decided to pay.  In throwing out the

         12  registration statement, DHCR left no standard other

         13  than their own whim.

         14                 DHCR's functioning has changed in the

         15  past several years.  In November, 2000, they drew up

         16  a list of service reductions which they considered

         17  de minimis, and gave themselves the options of

         18  adding anything else they wanted.  In one case they

         19  found that a pool of standing water that does not

         20  drain -- a clear health violation -- was de minimis.

         21    They found that the landlord's denial of a

         22  tenant's rights allowed by lease was de minimis and

         23  contrary to their own rules.  DHCR had been given

         24  the responsibility for enforcing --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Please
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          2  finish up.

          3                 MS. ALLEN:  Okay.

          4                  -- The rules regarding a landlord's

          5  exemption from a garage sentencing.  Proof showed

          6  that that was violated; that was de minimis.

          7                 DHCR abdicates its responsibility

          8  under the laws and shifts the burden to other

          9  agencies.  When inspectors found there was no full-

         10  time super in a 66- unit building, they say tell

         11  HPD.  When it was shown that mailboxes were

         12  vandalized; tell the Post Office.  DHCR has given

         13  up, in fact, jurisdiction over regulation in housing

         14  and City, which brings me to the Urstadt Laws.

         15  You've heard a lot about it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You're

         17  taking time away from other people that would like

         18  to testify.

         19                 MS. ALLEN:  Okay.

         20                 I've attached a letter from the

         21  Mayor, which says that he also supports repealing

         22  the Urstadt Laws, and I'm submitting that, attached

         23  to my statement for your review.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. ALLEN:  Thank you for hearing my
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          2  testimony.

          3                 MR. GENSLER:  Hello.  I'm Mickey

          4  Gensler from the Skyview's Tenants Association, also

          5  the Citywide Tenants Coalition.

          6                 I've gone to a number of these

          7  hearings and have always gone home disappointed.

          8  They call these things hearing, but no one is really

          9  listening.  I have testified to as little as two

         10  Council People, and on two occasions not been heard

         11  at all.

         12                 Let me give you the politics of the

         13  situation. Some Council People represent areas with

         14  very little tenant housing and do not fear

         15  retribution from tenants, so why should they care

         16  about tenants.  Thomas Ognibene as an example.  We

         17  knew we could never get rid of him by the ballot, so

         18  we term limited him.  Other Council People have

         19  their campaigns financed by landlords and the real

         20  estate industry, or have investments in real estate

         21  so why should they care about tenants.  Peter

         22  Vallone, Kenneth Fisher, and Herbert Berman come to

         23  mind.  We took care of them they wanted to run for

         24  other office.  We tenants do not forget.

         25                 On a few occasions we have tried to
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          2  meet with some Council People to explain our

          3  position, only to be ignored.  How can we expect

          4  fairness from people who would not listen to us? The

          5  results speak for themselves.  We have been shafted

          6  by our City Council continuously; it's time to stop.

          7    We tenants do not forget.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          9                 MS. DOCKERY:  Hi.  My name is Clare

         10  Dockery.  I'm a member of the Park West Village

         11  Tenant's Association and all the Citywide Tenant

         12  organizations.  I'm also a member of the Joint

         13  Public Affairs Committee for Older Adults.  However,

         14  I am speaking as an older person who has lived in

         15  New York City for almost 50 years and who is

         16  concerned about housing for middle and working class

         17  people.

         18                 I support almost everything that

         19  everybody has said, especially repeal of Urstadt.

         20  However, the Assembly Bill, Resolution 692, which

         21  asks the State Senate to pass and the Governor to

         22  sign A- 276, is a good bill and it is better than

         23  what we have; however, it still has a mandatory

         24  vacancy increase of 10 percent, which I think should

         25  be totally eliminated, and I also think certain
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          2  secession rights should be changed.

          3                 If we want people in this, like

          4  people such as are in this room, if we want artists,

          5  nurses, civil servants to live -- the people who

          6  make New York City livable and exciting to live in

          7  New York, affordable housing must be available.

          8  This means that people should pay about 30 percent,

          9  not 50 percent or more of their income for housing.

         10  From my non- business background it does not appear

         11  to me that the private sector is willing to do this,

         12  and I am not competent enough to explain how

         13  government and non- profit should provide housing,

         14  but if profit is the only motive in providing

         15  housing, it does not seem that we built or provided

         16  for working and middle- class families.  And I don't

         17  often hear of landlords going broke.  Thank you.

         18                 Therefore, I urge the Council to join

         19  forces with other organizations to build affordable

         20  housing.

         21                 And as an older person who has

         22  advocated for myself and others like myself I would

         23  also like to bring up SCRIE, the senior citizen rent

         24  increase exemption.  At present it covers only the

         25  elderly whose incomes are $20,000 or less, and who
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          2  pay one- third of their income for rent, that's 33-

          3  and- a- third percent.  This means that if a

          4  person's income --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          6  Again, that's not on for discussion today, so when

          7  we have another hearing on that you can come back.

          8                 MS. DOCKERY:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10                 MS. DOCKERY:  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And it's

         12  also not in my committee.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREYER:  I have a

         14  quick question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         16  Member Brewer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREYER:  I'll be very

         18  quick.

         19                 From Clare Dockery.  Pertaining to

         20  the bills that are on the agenda today, is there

         21  some relationship to what's going on at Park West

         22  Village that pertains to these bills?

         23                 MS. DOCKERY:  The vacancy decontrol,

         24  which means that once the rent hits 2,000 is

         25  destabilizing Park West Village.
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          2                 On my floor, with 18 apartments, two

          3  people have died -- because this is prevailing color

          4  of hair -- they're 80 plus years old.  It's said,

          5  but it's not a shocker, and one person has moved.  A

          6  small studio with the individual apartment

          7  improvements and the vacancy decontrol is not

          8  decontrolled; it's renting for 1700.  Two one-

          9  bedrooms is renting for 2300, and one is renting for

         10  2400.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         13                 Vicky Francalanci.  She's not here.

         14                 John Stanley, Christopher Kui,

         15  Parvati Devi, Shiklene Cooper, Nneka Pope, Margaret

         16  Hughes.

         17                 Okay.  Do you want to start?  Say

         18  your name and begin.

         19                 MR. STANELY:  I am John Stanely.  I

         20  was born here in Manhattan as was my parents.  I in

         21  1921.  First of all I would like to protest being

         22  reduced two minutes to speak on this vital matter of

         23  housing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well, I

         25  would suggest that you don't waste your two minutes
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          2  by protesting that, just make your statement.

          3                 MR. STANELY:  That's a very important

          4  part of my statement, Madam.

          5                 There's great abuse on the part of

          6  the landlord class, especially when they are

          7  institutional in the way they use these laws and

          8  this must be corrected.  Quite specifically, I have

          9  in mind a synagogue at the corner of 23rd Street and

         10  2nd Avenue, which about 20 years ago bought a series

         11  of four buildings on 23rd Street and 2nd Avenue and

         12  proceeded to evict the tenants.  They then tore down

         13  a building, and they have now decided that it wasn't

         14  a good place to have a house of worship, and they

         15  have abandoned the whole prospect and have driven

         16  everybody out.  They should be prosecuted and the

         17  citizens who had housing should be compensated for

         18  this.

         19                 I have not heard the word veteran

         20  used today.  I am a World War II Veteran, who served

         21  in Europe from 1941 to 1945.  The reason I know

         22  about this 2nd Avenue and 23rd Street situation with

         23  the scandalous religious organization is that I'm an

         24  out- patient at the VA Hospital at 1st Avenue and

         25  23rd Street. So I go there often.  Veterans are also
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          2  citizens.  We are now under the rulership of a fraud

          3  in Washington, who shouldn't be in the White House

          4  in the first place, who is about to create more war

          5  veterans.  We don't even take care of our veterans

          6  who are unhoused.  They must be taken care of.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          8                 MR. STANLEY:  This should be an

          9  important part --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Stanely,

         11  your time is up.

         12                 MR. STANLEY:  -- Of your

         13  consideration.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 MR. STANLEY:  My time is up because

         17  you have made it up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Absolutely,

         19  that's correct.  I'm the Chairperson.

         20                 MR. STANELY:  Yes, and you are wrong.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And I have

         22  made it up.

         23                 Who's next?  Would you like to speak?

         24    Please state your name.

         25                 MR. DEVI:  Parvati Devi is my name.
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          2  Good afternoon.

          3                 I am here with the support of several

          4  groups included Disabled in Action.  I've included

          5  some fliers for you along with my testimony.

          6                 We need more than just the renewal of

          7  the rent laws, elimination of vacancy decontrol and

          8  the Urstadt Law.  We need to protect our existing

          9  housing stock with more inspectors. We can extend

         10  the SRO no warehousing policy to all rent regulated

         11  housing and forestall this rapid gentrification.  I

         12  doubt that the Council is aware that a landlord can

         13  get only a 250- dollar fine for not providing heat

         14  and hot water for six weeks.  The City could rake in

         15  millions if not more going after neglectful

         16  landlords.  Yes, you have to have the nerve to fight

         17  the real estate industry.  I don't think anyone is

         18  really listening.

         19                 There are plenty of housing bills

         20  sitting in both City and State government.  One in

         21  particular concerns me, extending SCRIE to people

         22  with disabilities.  I spend 75 percent of my SSI

         23  check on rent.  If I become homeless it will cost

         24  even more to house me.  My health would deteriorate,

         25  extra medical expenses.  Where will I end up?  Will
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          2  the government not be happy till all people with

          3  disabilities are ghettoized in shelters at $20,000

          4  per year, or in a nursing home at $91,000, or in

          5  costly supportive housing when there isn't even a

          6  need for it.  Is the Council aware that an SSI

          7  recipient receives only 639 per month? Does the

          8  Council know that the State has not increased SSI

          9  for 13 years.  With this situation, tens of

         10  thousands of disabled New Yorkers, like me, are on

         11  the brink.  The Mayor says the bill costs too much.

         12  Well, for one year 4.1 million; homelessness costs

         13  more.

         14                 The Assembly has passed a bill

         15  extending SCRIE to SSI/SSD recipients for two years.

         16    Six republican senators sponsored the bill in the

         17  senate.  I've been lobbying in Albany for years.

         18  The Mayor is backing out of a campaign promise he

         19  sent in the mail to everyone extending SCRIE,

         20  because the City would have to come up with the

         21  money.  It is the Mayor and the City Council that is

         22  preventing disabled people from getting SCRIE.

         23  Disabled community is counting on you to extend

         24  SCRIE to cover disabled New Yorkers under the age of

         25  62.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Identify

          3  yourself?

          4                 MS. POPE:  Good afternoon.  My name

          5  is Nneka Pope and I am a resident of Roosevelt

          6  Island, a member of the Roosevelt Island Residents

          7  Association, as well as a Board Member of Community

          8  Board 8.

          9                 I'm not here to represent either of

         10  those associations, instead I'm a 26- year resident

         11  of Mitchell- Lama housing on Roosevelt Island, and I

         12  am here to support 691, as well as 692.  To move

         13  forward, strengthen our rent control and rent

         14  stabilization.

         15                 I also am here to support the

         16  Assembly Bill 2716, which does that as well as

         17  extends rent stabilization to Mitchell- Lama

         18  buildings.

         19                 My thinking, and reason for being

         20  here today in addition to what I have previous

         21  discussed is that this City is really at a turning

         22  point.  We have pulled together tremendously since

         23  September 11th, and we have done so because our

         24  communities are full of people who have lived and

         25  worked in this City for years and years and years,
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          2  and that's because we have strong communities that

          3  are, yes, destabilizing because of what's happening

          4  to affordable housing, but we have also people who

          5  are continuing to move forward and support this

          6  City.  It really will be profoundingly (sic) hurtful

          7  to the people in this City if we de- stabilize

          8  affordable housing in this manner.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Faith

         11  Steinberg, Charles Seelig, Timothy Collins, Maxine

         12  Zeifman.  We'll do four now, maybe it will speed it

         13  up.

         14                 MS. STEINBERG:  Hello.  My name is

         15  Faith Steinberg.  I want to thank you for

         16  introducing these vital resolutions for the tenants

         17  of New York City.  I don't have to go over them, I'm

         18  sure.

         19                 I live in a rent stabilized

         20  apartment, nine tenants in a brownstone.  The

         21  landlord has already decontrolled two apartments

         22  which means two more affordable apartments off the

         23  market, and that's about a 22 percent in

         24  decontrolled apartments, if you want figures.  The

         25  rent control laws are particularly essential at this
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          2  time with the economic downturn, there are about

          3  100,000 people out of work, and many of young people

          4  from the minority community.  Homelessness is on the

          5  increase.  I would venture to say that the ones who

          6  are not suffering the most in these times are the

          7  landlord who are crying because they continue to

          8  collect the same amount of rent.  If you don't pay

          9  up, you're out, evicted, and there are plenty of

         10  tenants to replace the evicted.

         11                 And the 18 percent, I have questions

         12  about that 18- percent tax that the Mayor placed on

         13  property owners, and will no doubt be dumped on rent

         14  stabilized tenants so that again many landlords

         15  don't suffer that much, they're just going to dump

         16  it on us.

         17                 And I want to particularly thank you

         18  for Resolution 691.  Let's get our rent laws off

         19  Joseph Bruno's table.  He doesn't give a hoot about

         20  the people of the City.

         21                 I know it's not on your agenda, but I

         22  think it's important about the lead poisoning.  I

         23  was at a Rent Guidelines Board hearing, and they

         24  said it cost too much.  And what I would like to

         25  know is if it was their children would they ask

                                                            180

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  about the costs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4                 Next please.  Mr. Collins?

          5                 MR. SEELIG:  My name is Charles

          6  Seelig.  I'm a rent controlled tenant.  I've lived

          7  in the City for all my life. My father all his life.

          8    His father all this life.  Going back so far we

          9  can't remember how long we've been here.  I'm not

         10  going to be able to afford to live in this City much

         11  longer.  I'm disabled.  I earn $826 a month, and my

         12  rent is now more than half.  We simply can't afford

         13  seven- and- a- half percent increases every year.

         14                 And I'm here to support, in

         15  particularly, Introduction 196.  MBR's go up every

         16  year despite whether the landlord is entitled to

         17  them because he hasn't made repairs, despite whether

         18  he's even applied for them.  They go up

         19  automatically, DHCR simply passes them along, there

         20  they are and at some point 10, 15, 20 years down the

         21  line, when he decides to apply for them, bam, he's

         22  going to get them.  As simple as that. My MBR is now

         23  $612 a month.  My fuel cost adjustment goes up every

         24  year in increase years, but he never applies in

         25  decrease years.  So all he's punished for is not to
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          2  have the fuel cost adjustment for that particular

          3  year.  He can't collect it, but the fuel cost

          4  adjustment increase from the previous year is still

          5  there at the end of that year, and he goes right

          6  back to collecting it, plus any increases of that

          7  year.

          8                 Everything the DHCR does is unfair.

          9  We can't afford this.  The disability increase, 1.3

         10  percent this year or something like that; my rent is

         11  going up seven- and- a- half every year.  At some

         12  point I'm going to be homeless, and I'll be one of

         13  the uncounted.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, Madam Chair,

         17  and Members of the Committee.  My name is Timothy

         18  Collins.  I served as the Executive Director and

         19  Counsel for the New York City Rent Guidelines Board

         20  from 1987 through 1994, and I appreciate and

         21  sympathize with the length of these hearings and

         22  having to hear all this testimony.

         23                 I've listened to tenants over the

         24  years at Rent Guidelines Board hearings.  I know

         25  that it can be very tiring at times having to hear
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          2  many of these stories about hardships, but I think

          3  that they're real.  In my experience, as a private

          4  attorney representing tenants, I've found out that

          5  they are real; something to be concerned about.

          6                 What I'm hear to talk about this

          7  afternoon really has to do with addressing the other

          8  concerns that this committee may have, not just the

          9  welfare of tenants, but you do have a public

         10  obligation to be concerned about the health of our

         11  housing stock, and you have an obligation to be

         12  concerned about overall fairness.  Does this system

         13  work?  Are owners adequately compensated?  Have we

         14  somehow lost housing as a result of rent regulation?

         15    The answers to all these questions, I felt when I

         16  first started off as a research person at the Rent

         17  Guidelines Board, I felt that the answer to those

         18  questions was that probably rent regulation does

         19  have some harmful effects. Amazingly, after seven

         20  years of studying the issue very closely and in the

         21  years following, I've discovered that, in fact, rent

         22  regulation didn't have any of those effects.  And

         23  I'd like to just provide you with a few statistics

         24  that I really hope that you will consider.

         25                 In 1970, the average tenant in New
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          2  York City spent about 20 percent of their income on

          3  rent, that's the median tenant.  Today it's 29

          4  percent and approaching 30 percent.  So we've seen a

          5  substantial increase in rent burdens.  Indeed a

          6  quarter of the tenants -- I'm sure you've heard

          7  these statistics earlier today -- a quarter of our

          8  tenants now spend over 50 percent of their incomes

          9  on rent, and for those earning under $20,000 a year,

         10  the median burden is 73 percent of their incomes on

         11  rent, which is a crushing burden for many tenants.

         12                 How have owners fared over the period

         13  of rent stabilization?  In the period from 1967 to

         14  1970, the average owner spent about 62- cents of

         15  every rent dollar collected on operating costs.

         16  Today, the average owner, as of last count spends

         17  about 56 cents of every rent dollar on operating

         18  costs. That means that during these three decades of

         19  rent stabilization, they have seen a rise in net

         20  operating income from 38- cents to 44- cents, which

         21  is quite substantial.  In addition, for those units

         22  that we've been able to track over time in a

         23  relatively precise way, the operating returns of

         24  owners have been kept whole against the effects of

         25  inflation.  Certainly tenants have suffered and
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          2  owners have done better.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          4                 MR. COLLINS:  I regret that I wasn't

          5  able to register earlier, and I do have, what I

          6  think are some helpful statistics.  Let me just make

          7  a few observations.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You can give

          9  them to the Committee, and we'll put them in the

         10  record.

         11                 MR. COLLINS:  I don't have anything

         12  prepared in writing to deliver at this point.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well, then

         14  you can get them to us at another time.

         15                 MR. COLLINS:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But we're

         17  asking everybody to stay within the two minutes.

         18                 MR. COLLINS:  Thank you.  Just a

         19  couple of notes about the experience in Boston.

         20                 In Boston, which was deregulated in

         21  1997, they said that vacancy rates would rise and

         22  rents would stabilize. Well, vacancy rates fell from

         23  four percent to 2.9 percent in Boston as of 2001,

         24  and the average rent in Boston for a two bedroom

         25  home went from $740 in 1991 to $1700 in 2001,
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          2  prompting the Mayor of Boston to again attempt to

          3  restore rent controls because the situation is out

          4  of control.

          5                 The fact is rent regulations have not

          6  hurt new construction in the City.  They have not

          7  reduced housing quality. They have not lead to under

          8  utilization.  They have not harmed owners returns.

          9  It's been a very fair system.  It's protected over a

         10  million tenant households and we need to preserve

         11  it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Collins,

         13  I have to ask you to sum up.

         14                 MR. COLLINS:  Thank you.  That's it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16                 Alice Parsekian, Anne Cunningham,

         17  James Lewis, Ida Pollack.

         18                 MS. PARSEKIAN:  My name is Alice

         19  Parsekian.  I'm a native New Yorker, who has resided

         20  in a rent- controlled studio apartment for over 30

         21  years.

         22                 I've come to realize it was a mistake

         23  to remain in the same apartment because under the

         24  existing laws of the New York State Housing and

         25  Community Renewal, I have had my rent raised
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          2  countless times.  Tenants who moved into my

          3  apartment years later under rent stabilized status,

          4  enjoy a bedroom for less than I am paying for a

          5  studio.

          6                 As public officials, listening to the

          7  citizens of New York today, this may be one of the

          8  most important subjects you will have to vote on in

          9  2003.  People depend on housing.  We don't own or

         10  live in mansions.  These are our homes.  We were

         11  born in New York.  We were raised here, educated

         12  here, worked in New York City firms, and contribute

         13  to the economy of New York. We need the housing laws

         14  extended past June, 2003, and with revisions for

         15  fairness regarding rent increases to the rent

         16  control and stabilized tenants.

         17                 Presently, rent controlled tenants

         18  get seven and a half percent annual increases, while

         19  stabilized tenants get two percent for one year and

         20  four percent for two years.  Social Security

         21  recipients were granted a 1.5 percent cost of living

         22  increase for 2003.  Our income has dropped

         23  drastically, but yet the landlords are assured of

         24  their seven- and- a- half percent increase.  We are

         25  trying to manage, but it's a challenge when you
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          2  consider paying higher rents, coinsurance on your

          3  health insurance, electric and gas, local and long

          4  distance phone calls, food, clothing, postage

          5  stamps, dentists, railroad tickets, bus and subways,

          6  and household expenses.  Landlords are not paupers.

          7  There should be more building inspectors to check on

          8  their claims of work done.

          9                 Again, I urge you to carefully study

         10  and consider all the expense --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Alice,

         12  please finish up.

         13                 MS. PARSEKIAN:  -- Of continuing the

         14  rent laws after June, 2003.  Over 40,000 tenants are

         15  under rent control. Let them live in peace.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         18                 Next?

         19                 MS. CUNNINGHAM:  My name is Anne

         20  Cunningham, and I will try to be very brief.  I've

         21  been waiting since one o'clock to talk.

         22                 I'm in favor for all the resolutions

         23  that are presented today and the Intro. Also.

         24                 I feel also that i would like to see

         25  come to the floor is the income threshold of SCRIE
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          2  increased from 20,000 to 30,000.  I know it's not

          3  your committee, but just keep it in mind.  And also

          4  to develop a systematic plan similar to SCRIE for

          5  disabled and low- income people that cannot afford

          6  to pay the high rents.

          7                 I would like to make a few comments

          8  on what I've been listening to today, particular

          9  what Joe Strasburg told you.

         10                 First of all, the RGB price index is

         11  not working. Year after year -- right, Mr. Jackson

         12   -- I have monitored it year after year in the

         13  classification of housing that I live in, the SRO's

         14  and residential apartment houses.  These owners

         15  claim that they spend thousands of dollars for beds

         16  and mops, and union wages.  They are not associated

         17  with 32BJ.  They do have some union members that are

         18  paid lower.  Most of their employees are non- union.

         19    So they're lying when they submit information to

         20  the RGB or the index.  That should be monitored very

         21  closely.

         22                 Also it was mentioned that tenants

         23  spend six months in Florida.  Tenants are not

         24  permitted to spend six months in Florida or anywhere

         25  else in the rent stabilized apartment.  If they do,
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          2  they are served a holdover notice and most appear in

          3  court, and ultimately are evicted.  Tenants cannot

          4  own a home in the Hamptons, as we heard today, about

          5  tenants owning homes in the Hamptons.  Where are

          6  they?  I never see them.

          7                 Okay.  The rent stabilization law is

          8  that tenants cannot own a home.  They're prime

          9  residence is that rent controlled or rent stabilized

         10  apartment, or else they lose the apartment.

         11  Landlords are not registering apartments the way

         12  they should.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Please sum

         14  up.

         15                 MS. CUNNINGHAM:  Very few register.

         16  And I will sum it up.

         17                 I counsel tenants, five to seven,

         18  sometimes six days a week, and send them to DHCR,

         19  and their apartment is not registered.  I believe

         20  the penalty for a landlord not registering an

         21  apartment is a 15- dollar fine, if they pay it.

         22  They may appeal that even.

         23                 Thank you for listening to me.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. POLLACK:  I'm Ida Pollack.  I
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          2  come from Queens.  I'm a rent stabilized tenant.  I

          3  belong to CLOUT, which is the Queens League of

          4  United Tenants and the Citywide Tenant Coalition.

          5  I've also had four hours of listening and sort of

          6  revising my remarks.

          7                 First of all, listening to tenants

          8  and listening to the landlords, it seems to me that

          9  their industry is failing. According to their

         10  figures, they're operating on a loss.  Well, let

         11  them get out of the business.  I think that housing

         12  should not be in the hands of greedy landlords.  A

         13  lot of people don't use the word landlord,

         14  especially in government.  They call them owners.

         15  We call them landlords, and they date back to the

         16  Middles Ages.

         17                 In all the years that I've been

         18  involved, nobody has been able to answer how come

         19  we've reached a housing crisis. It's 30 years now.

         20  You mean to tell me progress is that low, that if

         21  there was intention to remedy this crisis in housing

         22  it couldn't be done yet.  There are two major

         23  reasons that I hear often.  One is that the Assembly

         24  blames the Senate, and says they cannot get around

         25  Bruno and Pataki, who seem to control the rent laws
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          2  of the City.  So get rid of the Urstadt Law and you

          3  won't have to bother with Bruno and Pitaci.

          4                 The second most announced reason is

          5  that the City Council can't manage to get around the

          6  Urstadt Law.  Their hands are tied because they

          7  can't introduce any kind of amendment that are less

          8  onerous than those of the State.  So get rid of the

          9  Urstadt Law.  It can't be that difficult that it

         10  takes 30 years.

         11                 Now I don't have much confidence,

         12  even though I'd like to, that there's going to be

         13  much change; although I hope there is.  All I

         14  remember is, I was for the term limits for one

         15  reason in particular, in that 35 members of the 51

         16  in the City Council --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Your time is

         18  up.  Please end up.

         19                 MS. POLLACK:  -- Always voted for

         20  landlords. Never saw fit to see that people, working

         21  people, seniors, disabled people, and people who

         22  have no jobs -- and everybody brings up 911, after

         23  all it did create tragedy in this City -- where are

         24  they going to live.  So I would say this City

         25  Council has to prove itself.  They have to get rid
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          2  of the Urstadt Law. They have to see to it that

          3  regulations are improved.  They can't just pass it

          4  as it is because too much has been taken out of it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. POLLACK:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Jacqueline

          8  Aristy.  Okay. Roy Bushar, Thomas Gregory, Dorothy

          9  Williams- Pererra, Myrna Beth Hurwitz, George Ross.

         10                 Would one of you like to start?

         11                 MS. ARISTY:  Yes.  Hi.  My name is

         12  Jacqueline Aristy, I'm the Acting Associative

         13  Director of the Community Training and Resource

         14  Center.

         15                 I would like to thank the Council

         16  Member Madeline Provenzano, and the other members of

         17  the Committee for holding this hearing and for

         18  giving my colleagues and I the opportunity to speak

         19  today.

         20                 CTRC supports the extension of City

         21  and State rent regulation and eviction protection

         22  laws without any weakening amendments.  New York

         23  City is still in a housing emergency. Everyone knows

         24  that New York City faces an increasing crisis in

         25  affordable housing.  Low and moderate income
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          2  seniors, individuals and families presently face a

          3  special hardship in finding and maintaining decent,

          4  safe, and affordable housing.

          5                 A repeal of the State's Urstadt Law

          6  would alleviate this hardship by once again

          7  providing the City of New York with the power to

          8  strengthen when necessary existing housing laws that

          9  effect rent stabilized dwellings and rent controlled

         10  dwellings.  The City could then comprehensibly work

         11  to preserve its affordable housing stock.

         12                 Assembly Bill 2716- A would extend

         13  rent and eviction protections to former Mitchell-

         14  Lama developments occupied on or after January 1st,

         15  1974, and provide rent and eviction protections to

         16  tenants living in former Federal Section 8 housing

         17  developments.  Without these protections these

         18  households face unaffordable rents and unwarranted

         19  evictions.  It also eliminates high rent vacancy

         20  decontrol, which has resulted in a hemorrhaging of

         21  regulated apartments, often unlawfully because there

         22  is no effective accountability on the decontrol of

         23  these units.

         24                 In addition, this assembly bill would

         25  end abuses in the rent stabilization system that
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          2  allow owners to evict tenants where the landlord

          3  claims he or she wants the units for himself or a

          4  family member, often fraudulently.  Eliminating

          5  personal use evictions would provide the same

          6  protection for New York City rent stabilized tenants

          7  that New York City rent controlled tenants and rent

          8  stabilized tenants outside of New York City now

          9  already have.

         10                 Assembly Bill 2716- A would also

         11  effectively preserve the existing stock of

         12  affordable housing by reducing the State's vacancy

         13  allowance from 20 percent to 10 percent in a given

         14  year.  The current vacancy allowance of 20 percent

         15  acts to reduce the number of affordable apartments

         16  and reduces the housing options of low and moderate

         17  income families in the City.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         20                 Next?

         21                 MS. HURWITZ:  Thank you.  My name is

         22  Myrna Beth Hurwitz.  I am a rent stabilized tenant

         23  in a condominium converted building in Greenwich

         24  Village.  I've lived there 34 years.  I'm 70 years

         25  old, retired, and paying $1100 a month rent, close
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          2  to 40 percent of my taxable income.

          3                 Recently in my building, a three room

          4  apartment, exactly like mine sold for three-

          5  quarters of a million dollars.               I'm

          6  here to strongly support the four measures before

          7  you today.  And I just want to home in on -- excuse

          8  the pun -- on two of those measures.  Extending the

          9  rent stabilization law.  Without, landlords would be

         10  under no legal obligation to offer lease renewals,

         11  and even if offered could charge sky high rents, way

         12  beyond the capacity of most rent stabilized tenants.

         13    And in my case, not only would the lease not have

         14  to be renewed, there would be little incentive to

         15  renew, even at market rate given that sale price I

         16  mentioned a moment ago.

         17                 Repeal the Urstadt Law.  It is

         18  outrageous that you and your other colleagues on the

         19  City Council are not empowered to exercise home rule

         20  on rent laws that effect the lives of so many people

         21  you represent.  City tenants should not be at the

         22  mercy of Albany, not exactly a tenant- friendly

         23  venue, on so critical an issue.

         24                 Your passage of Resolution 691 would

         25  send a resounding message to the State Capital.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4                 Next?

          5                 MS. WILLIAMS- PERERRA:  My name is

          6  Dorothy Williams- Pererra.  I'm the Vice President

          7  of Disabled in action. And I'm not going to repeat

          8  the stuff that Miss Debbie said already because

          9  you've already heard it recently, but I want to add

         10  some opinions I have about what's going on here.

         11                 It seems to me that we've got a

         12  terrible problem with affordable housing, and as a

         13  result we should pay people to build it.  Well, it

         14  seems to me that if we need to pay people to build

         15  it because they can't afford to run their own

         16  businesses, then maybe we should be in business

         17  having more public housing, that we should not pay

         18  people to be in business.  If you can't run your

         19  business at a profit in a fair way, then you

         20  shouldn't be in business.  You should get out, and

         21  you shouldn't be dragging people into court for

         22  warranty of habituality (sic) violations in which

         23  you think you should get rent no matter how bad your

         24  apartment is, no matter how many rats and fleas are

         25  in there, no matter how much mold is in there, no
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          2  matter how many times they turn off the heat, no

          3  matter how many times they turn off the water, no

          4  matter how many times they harass people.  You

          5  shouldn't be able to go and get away with this, not

          6  for $15, or $250, but you should be in jail for

          7  making people live in substandard housing, and you

          8  should be thrown out of the business permanently

          9  because you shouldn't be allowed to practice that

         10  kind of business.  It's an outrageous business.

         11  It's a business that doesn't care about the

         12  disabled.

         13                 We need the SCRIE to be added to the

         14  disabled, and we need to stop having people in

         15  business, in any kind of business that are

         16  exploiters and that are not running at a fair

         17  market.  There is no fair market.  This isn't a fair

         18  market; this is monopoly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         20  Thank all of you.

         21                 Anita Romm, John Derek Norvell,

         22  Caroline LaVerne, Richmond Haxie.

         23                 Does one of you want to start?

         24  Identify yourself.

         25                 MS. ROMM:  Okay.  Good afternoon.  My
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          2  name is Anita Romm.  I am the songwriter for

          3  Metropolitan Council on Housing, and I'm here to

          4  urge you to vote in favor of Intro. 367.          We

          5  must extend rent stabilization if we don't want a

          6  City with homelessnes up the wazoo (sic).

          7                 We also must pass Resolution 690, to

          8  declare a housing emergency and you automatically

          9  extend rent control.

         10                 Also, why do we still have the

         11  Urstadt Law?  We are big boys and girls here in New

         12  York City, and don't need Albany to micro- manage

         13  our affairs.  So we need to pass Resolution 619.

         14  Get rid of the Urstadt Law.

         15                 We also need to pass Resolution 692,

         16  to ask the State Senate to pass, and the Governor to

         17  sign a 2716- A, to extend rent regulations and

         18  repeal high rent vacancy decontrol. We cannot afford

         19  a situation where people could be evicted for any

         20  cockamamie reason.

         21                 Also, I'm concerned about the lead

         22  poisoning problem.  We need to pass Intro. 101

         23  because in 1939 and '40, when I was little, I was

         24  fed infant formula from a can which was soldered by

         25  lead and that caused a little bit of learning
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          2  disability in me.  Landlords need to be held

          3  accountable for lead poisoning.

          4                 Please, let your conscience be your

          5  guide and extend and strengthen rent regulations.

          6  Laissie faire muer derriere (phonetic).

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8                 Next?

          9                 MR. NORVELL:  Hello.  My name is John

         10  Derek Norvell, and I'm representing the Harlem

         11  Tenants Council, Lower Washington Heights

         12  Association.  I'm also initiating the public housing

         13  initiative which we will start March 13th, to also

         14  protect people in public housing because the

         15  problems here are reverberating into public housing

         16  as well, and it's serious.

         17                 The problem of the emergency crisis

         18  in New York City housing is a serious one.  And I'm

         19  echoing all the other things that were said before

         20  to strengthen the rent control laws, and to get rid

         21  of this Urstadt business.  As we said, we can govern

         22  ourselves quite adequately.

         23                 And I just want to know that you, as

         24  members of the City Council, aren't you tired, every

         25  year we come back with the same complaints and
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          2  nothing is ever done.  It seems that very little is

          3  ever done.  What gets me is we've heard the realty

          4  people sing the blues about their problems.  Let me

          5  tell you that I know of one lady who lived in the

          6  Mitchell- Lama, came to our attention just a couple

          7  of weeks ago, who was only 685.  She was in a fixed

          8  income, she was elderly.  Of that, $615 was being

          9  taken in as rent.  There was this buyout, whatever,

         10  and the rent was being increased.  She just couldn't

         11  take it any more.  She took her table to the edge of

         12  the balcony, and she just leaped over.  Talk about

         13  the blues, that's worse than the blues, and we have

         14  40,000 people here in the City who are homeless.

         15  Many of them, brown, and baise, and black, and the

         16  numbers are increasing.  An alarmingly large number

         17  of them are children, and we talk about school and

         18  education and stuff.

         19                 I too teach, and I know that to give

         20  my kids homework it's not tree work to be done under

         21  a tree; it's to be done at home, but if a child

         22  doesn't have a home, how is that stability in the

         23  schools?

         24                 We need to strengthen these laws.  We

         25  need to also get rid of the Urstadt Law.
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          2                 There's something else that I'd like

          3  to bring to your attention, and I know it may not be

          4  on the agenda.  But I had heard that in Chicago, the

          5  alderman had passed a law saying that there should

          6  be any evictions during the winter.  We shouldn't

          7  have any evictions here.  We've had a hard one, and

          8  we've heard that they don't allow evictions during

          9  Christmas week.  Well, God bless Bob Cratchet; we

         10  need it for the whole winter.  And so I hope that

         11  you'll consider these things.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 All right.  I'm happy to say we got

         16  through the whole list.  It's five o'clock.  I thank

         17  all of you that stuck it out.

         18                 Those of you who have testimony you

         19  would want to hand in.

         20                 I would like to thank my colleagues,

         21  Council Member -- excuse me.  The meeting is not

         22  adjourned.

         23                 I would like to thank my colleagues,

         24  Council Member Kendall Stewart, Council Member

         25  Robert Jackson -- oops, she left -- Council Woman
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          2  Brewer for making it through the meeting with me.

          3                 And we'll be voting on -- not today,

          4  but we will be voting next week on Intro. 367, and

          5  Resolution 690.  It will pass out of this Committee,

          6  and I'm sure be passed by the full Council.

          7                 Again, thank all of you.  This

          8  meeting is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 5:00 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EILEEN ROMAINE, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 25th day of February 2003.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          EILEEN ROMAINE
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          9            I, EILEEN ROMAINE, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              EILEEN ROMAINE

         23

         24

         25

